

15160 Jackson Road, Rancho Murieta, CA 95683 Office - 916-354-3700 * Fax - 916-354-2082

FINANCE COMMITTEE

(Directors John Merchant and Martin Pohll)

Regular Meeting September 6, 2022 at 10:00 a.m.

This meeting will be held via ZOOM video conference only. You can join the conference by (1) logging on to https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85027814326, entering Meeting ID no. 850 2781 4326, and using the audio on your computer, or (2) dialing into 1-669-900-9128 and entering the meeting code 850 2781 4326. Those wishing to join with audio only can simply call the telephone number above and enter the code. Participants wishing to join the call anonymously have the option of dialing *67 from their phone. Please refer to your telephone service provider for specific instructions. PLEASE NOTE – MOBILE DEVICE USERS MAY NEED TO INSTALL AN APP PRIOR TO USE AND MAC AND PC DESKTOP AND LAPTOP USES WILL REQUIRE YOU TO RUN A ZOOM INSTALLER APPLICATION – PLEASE FOLLOW DIRECTIONS AS PROVIDED BY ZOOM. IT IS RECOMMENDED YOU ATTEMPT TO LOGIN AT LEAST 5 MINUTES BEFORE THE START OF THE MEETING.

AGENDA

- 1. Call to Order
- 2. Consider Finding That as a Result of the COVID-19 Emergency: (i) Meeting in Person Would Present Imminent Risks to the Health or Safety of Attendees; and (ii) the Meeting is Authorized to be Held by Teleconference Pursuant to Gov. Code, § 54953, subd. (e)(1)(C).
- 3. Comments from the Public
- 4. Finance Monthly Updates
 - General Update on Current Finance
 - Utility Billing Updates
- 5. Discuss Adoption of an Ordinance to establish Rules and Regulation for Organic Waste Disposal
- 6. Outline Financial Services Agreement with The Pun Group
- 7. Review Internal Controls Policy

8. Discuss Reserve Policy

9. Discuss Measure R Security Special Parcel Tax Initiative

10. Directors and Staff Comments/Suggestions

11. Adjournment

"In accordance with California Government Code Section 54957.5, any writing or document that is a public record, relates to an open session agenda item and is distributed less than 24 hours prior to a special meeting, will be made available for public inspection in the District offices during normal business hours. If, however, the document is not distributed until the regular meeting to which it relates, then the document or writing will be made available to the public at the location of the meeting."

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you are an individual with a disability and you need a disability-related modification or accommodation to participate in this meeting or need assistance to participate in this teleconference meeting, please contact the District Office at 916-354-3700 or awilder@rmcsd.com. Requests must be made as soon as possible.

Note: This agenda is posted pursuant to the provisions of the Government Code commencing at Section 54950. The date of this posting is September 1, 2022. Posting locations are: 1) District Office; 2) Rancho Murieta Association; 4) Murieta Village Association.

MEMORANDUM

Date: August 26, 2022

To: Finance Committee

From: Paula O'Keefe, Director of Administration

Subject: Monthly Finance Updates

Finance Updates

Current Finance Reporting

District staff have the majority of documents and work papers needed to Richardson & Co CPAs to initiate the discussions for the draft audit. Staff are actively engaging in conversations with the auditor to provide additional documents.

Contract for Enterprise Resource Planning – ERP, 2022

District staff are working towards finalizing financial documents and will provide new updates on any progress with Tyler Technologies once the Accounting Services firm has stabilized our accounting processes.

Financial Consulting

The District has entered into a contract with the PUN Group, an Accounting Services firm, and they were onsite the week of August 29 to complete initial analysis and assessments of next steps and provide a timeline of tasks for completion.

Utility Billing

Staff are continuing to audit the residential accounts within Utility Star. Through the audit process, staff have determined that several errors occurred during the "move in/move out" process. Because certain revenue codes were entered manually, the cost of the service did not update when the new fiscal year corrections were entered. These errors go back several years so the District is working with the attorneys on the appropriate resolution for residents regarding collection or refunds. Currently as it stands, over the last four years, the District has lost approximately \$10,000 in revenues for trash, sewer and security combined.

Once the determination has been made regarding the refund/collection for account corrections, the District will bring forward an updated policy for Finance Committee review to move forward for Board recommendation and will start sending out letters to the impacted residents.

MEMORANDUM

Date: September 1, 2022

To: Finance Committee

From: Paula O'Keefe, Director of Administration

Subject: Recommendation to Introduce the Solid Waste Ordinance to Include Organics Waste

Requirement

RECOMMENDED ACTION

Approve proposed changes to Chapter 31, Solid Waste Code and associated ordinance.

BACKGROUND

In an effort to comply with the CalRecycle SB1383 Organics Waste requirement, the District's attorney reviewed the existing Solid Waste ordinance and made several revisions. These revisions update the Solid Waste Ordinance and outline the compliance requirements of SB1383. The District is required to administer the program through our solid waste carriers and ensure compliance of all of organics waste recyclables within the District.

SUMMARY

Revisions have been made to the current ordinance. Upon Finance Committee approval, this policy will be moved to the regular Board meeting September 21, 2022.

RANCHO MURIETA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

DISTRICT CODE CHAPTER 31

SOLID WASTE COLLECTION AND DISPOSAL



Amended June 16, 2021 , 2022 Ordinance O20212022-01

TABLE OF CONTENTS

SECTION	1.00 Findings — Purpose of Provisions
ECHON	2.00 Definitions
2.01	Bulky Waste or Large Items
2.02	Board
2.03	Collection
2.04	Cart or Container
2.05	Contractor
2.06	County
2.07	Department
2.08	Disposal
2.09	District
2.10	Exempt Waste
2.11	Garbage
2.12	Green Waste
2.13	
2.14	Recyclable Materials
2.15	1
2.16	Solid Waste
ECTION	12.00 Marchard Constru
ECHON	3.00 Mandatory Service
3.01	Mandatory Service
3.02	Exceptions to Mandatory Service
3.03	Exemptions from Green Waste Collection
ECTION	4.00 Exclusive Right of Collection
	_
4.01	Collection by District - Applicable Provisions:
4.02	I . In the second of the se
4.03	Collection Rates and Billings
a. 	Rates
b	Collection of Charges for Collection Services
c.	Billing
d.	Due Date
e.	Delinquency
f.	Delinquency Penalty
.g.	Collection of Delinguent Charges on County Tax Roll

4.04	Collection Hours and Collection Days	9
4.05	Carts, Containers, and Lawn and Leaf Bags	0
		٥
a. 	Garbage Cart	وع ٥
b. -	Green Waste Cart	
C.	Recycling Cart	9
d.	Used Oil Container	9
e.	Lawn and Leaf Bags:	9
4.06	Solid Waste Burning	1 0
4.07	Depositing In Streets	1 0
Persons	Duna auto Dialeta	10
5.01	Property Rights	1 0
5.02	Violation	10
5.03	Recyclable Material—Owner's Rights:	10
SECTION	6.00 Construction and Demolition Refuse	10
6.01	Storage	10
6.02	Disposal	10
SECTION	7.00 Dumping Solid Waste	10
7.01	On Public Property	10
7.02	On Private Property	11
SECTION	LS O Posidential Solid Waste Collection Vehicles	11

DISTRICT CODE

CHAPTER 31

SOLID WASTE COLLECTION AND DISPOSAL

SECTION 1.00 SECTION 1.00 Findings — Purpose of Provisions

The Board does find and determine that the storage, accumulation, collection and disposal of Solid Waste, and other discarded goods and material, is a service the District is authorized to provide, and is a matter of great public concern in that improper control of such matters can lead to air pollution, fire hazards, rat infestation, and other problems affecting the health, welfare and safety of the District. The Board declares that the regulations in Chapter 31 of this Code provided are designed to eliminate or alleviate such problems.

The Board further finds as follows:

- a. Reduction of the amount of Solid Waste and conservation of recyclable materials is an important public concern of the District by reason of the growing problem of Solid Waste disposal and its impact on our environment;
- b. Recycling conserves valuable material resources and energy, and promotes greater efficiency; and
- c. Recycling will reduce the overall amount of Solid Waste presently generated, and thus reduce storage, collection, transportation and disposal costs for residents of the District.

SECTION 2.00 SECTION 2.00 Definitions

Whenever in Chapter 31 of this Code, the following words or phrases are used; they shall have the meanings respectively ascribed to them in this section:

2.01 2.01 Bulky Waste or Large Items

Bulky Waste or Large Items shall mean materials including furniture, carpets, mattresses, clothing, tires, large green waste, or some combination of such items in a container the dimensions and weight of which container does not exceed four feet by four feet by two feet (4'x4'x2') and sixty (60) pounds, which are attributed to the normal activities of a residential dwelling. Bulky Waste or Large Items must be generated by and at the physical location wherein the large items are collected. Bulky Waste shall not include ExemptExcluded Waste.

{00282927.100282927.2}

2.02 2.02 Board

Board shall mean the Board of the Rancho Murieta Community Services District.

2.03 2.03 Collection

Collection shall mean the operation of gathering together and transporting to the point of disposal of Solid Waste and other waste material.

2.04 2.04 Cart or Container

Cart or Container shall mean a receptacle constructed of metal, rubber, plastic or a combination thereof.

2.05 2.05 Contractor

Contractor shall mean the person entering into a contract with the District for the collection and disposal of Solid Waste.

2.06 2.06 County

County shall mean the County of Sacramento.

2.07 2.07 Department

Department shall mean the Sacramento County Department of Public Works acting by, through and under the authority of the Director of Public Works, unless the context indicates otherwise.

2.08 2.08 Disposal

Disposal shall mean the complete operation of treating and disposing of the accumulations of Solid Waste and the product or residue arising from such treatment.

District shall mean the Rancho Murieta Community Services District.

2.10 2.10 ExemptExcluded Waste

Exempt Excluded Waste shall mean biohazardous or biomedical waste; hazardous waste sludge; Manure or Stable Matter; organic waste more than five (5) feet in length or with a diameter more than six (6) inches or a weight more than fifty (50) pounds; electronic equipment such as televisions, stereos, computers, monitors, VCR's and similar items; and refrigerators, ranges, water heaters, freezers and similar household appliances; boats and boat trailers; automobiles; automobile parts; internal combustion engines; lead-acid batteries; and those wastes under the control of the Nuclear Regulatory Commission.

2.11 Garbage

2.11 Food Waste

<u>GarbageFood Waste</u> shall mean all putrescible waste, which generally includes but is not limited to kitchen and table food waste, animal, vegetative, food or any organic waste that is attendant with, or results from the storage, preparation, cooking or handling of food materials. <u>GarbageFood Waste</u> must be generated by and at the physical location wherein the <u>GarbageFood Waste</u> is collected.

2.12 Green Waste

Green Waste shall mean any vegetative matter resulting from normal yard and landscaping maintenance. Green Waste includes plant debris, such as grass clippings, leaves, pruning, weeds, branches, brush, Christmas trees, and other forms of organic waste not more than five (5) feet in its longest dimension or with a diameter not more than six (6) inches or weights more than fifty (50) pounds and must be generated by and at the physical location wherein the Green Waste are collected.

2.12 2.13 Manure or Stable Matter

Manure or Stable Matter shall mean any waste matter normally accumulated in stables, or in livestock or poultry enclosures.

2.13 Organic Waste

Organic Waste shall mean Solid Waste containing material originated from living organisms and their metabolic waste products, including but not limited to Food Waste, green material, landscape and pruning waste, organic textiles and carpets, lumber, wood, Paper Products, Printing and Writing Paper, manure, biosolids, digestate, and sludges or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(46).

2.14 Recyclable Materials

Recyclable Materials shall mean those materials that are capable of being recycled and which would otherwise be processed or dispose of as garbage-food-waste or rubbish-Rubbish. Recyclable Materials include: newsprint (including inserts); mixed paper (including magazines, catalogs, envelopes, junk mail, corrugated cardboard, Kraft brown bags and paper, paperboard, paper egg cartons, office ledger paper, and telephone books); glass containers; aluminum beverage containers; small scrap and cast aluminum (not exceeding forty (40) pounds in weight nor two (2) feet in any dimension for any single item); steel, including "tin" cans and small scrap (not exceeding forty (40) pounds in weight nor two (2) feet in any dimension for any single item); bimetal containers; mixed plastics such as plastic bags, plastic film, plastic containers (1-7), and bottles including containers made of HDPE, LDPE, PET, or PVC; textiles; aseptic containers; and polystyrene.

2.15 2.15 Rubbish

Rubbish shall mean accumulation of refuse, paper, excelsior, rags, wooden boxes and containers, sweep-ups, and all other accumulations of a nature other than Garbage, GreenFood
Waste, Organic Waste or Recyclable Materials. Rubbish must be generated by and at the physical location wherein the Rubbish is collected.

2.16 **2.16** Solid Waste

Solid Waste shall mean Garbage, GreenFood Waste, Organic Waste, Large Items, Recyclable Materials, or Rubbish that is generated or accumulates in homes, hotels, restaurants, businesses, offices or government buildings. Solid Waste must be generated by and at the physical location wherein the Solid Waste is collected. Solid Waste shall not include ExemptExcluded Waste.

SECTION 3.00 SECTION 3.00 Mandatory Service

3.01 3.01 Mandatory Service

Except as otherwise expressly provided by this Chapter, the owner, tenant, or occupant of every improved parcel (parcel with one or more residential buildings approved for occupancy) located within the District shall subscribe to Solid Waste Collection Service provided by the District.

3.02 3.02 Exceptions to Mandatory Service

A residential construction contractor, commercial gardener and those engaged in the business of cleaning residential properties and employees thereof, when collecting or transporting Solid Waste consisting of by-products of the services provided to a lawful disposal location.

{00282927.100282927.2}

3.03 Exemptions from Green Waste Collection

District residents that do not generate any green waste may apply to the District for an exemption from green waste collection. If exemptions are granted by the District, residents receiving the exemptions shall be entitled to reduction on the monthly collection rate as established by the Board and will not be provided with a green waste cart.

SECTION 4.00 SECTION 4.00 Exclusive Right of Collection

The District and its duly authorized agents, servants, and employees, or any Contractor with whom the District may at any time enter into a contract therefore, and the agents, servants, and employees of such contractor, while any such contract shall be in force, shall have the exclusive right to gather, collect and remove Solid Waste from all premises in the District; and no person other than those above specified shall gather, collect or remove any Solid Waste, or convey or transport any Solid Waste in, along or over any public streets, alley or highway in the District, or take any Solid Waste from any container in which the same may be placed for collection or removal, or interfere with or disturb any such container from any location where the same is placed by the owner thereof; provided, however, that nothing in this section contained shall be deemed to prohibit the occupant of any dwelling house from himself removing any Solid Waste accumulated on the premises occupied by him as a dwelling house and disposing of the same in a lawful manner, or to prohibit any person from gathering, collecting or removing from the premises occupied by him any Solid Waste.

- a. The District may provide for the collection and disposal of Solid Waste from all premises in the District. When the District so acts, the following provisions shall be applicable. Such collection and disposal shall be accomplished at least once each calendar week. Such provisions may be made either by letting a contract for such collection and removal or otherwise. The District shall have charge and supervision of such collection and removal and shall prescribe and establish routes and days for the collection and removal of Solid Waste from the various parts of the District so as to conform to the provisions of this Chapter 31 of this Code and may change the same from time to time. When such routes or days of collection are established or changed, the District shall give notice thereof in such manner as the District deems best. Every person desiring to have the District collect and remove Solid Waste from any premises in the District shall place and keep the same in such containers as are required by this Chapter.
- <u>b.</u> When the collection of Solid Waste is desired, the containers shall be placed along the street curb in front of the premises from which the Solid Waste is to be removed or in such other location designated by the District. No person shall place any cart for or containing Solid Waste in any street or public highway of the District before 5:00 p.m. prior to the day of collection or allow

any cart for Solid Waste placed by him or her in any such street or other collection location after 7:00 a.m. on the day following collection.

<u>c.</u> When the collection of Bulky Waste is desired, residents may place Bulky Waste along the street curb in front of the premises from which the Bulky Waste is to be removed no earlier than 5:00 p.m. prior to the scheduled day of Bulky Waste collection.

4.02 4.02 Collection by Independent Contractor

If the Board has the collection and disposal of Solid Waste collected by an independent contractor or contractors, the contract shall be made under such terms and conditions as may be prescribed by resolution and set forth in such contract.

0.72

4.03 4.03 Collection Rates and Billings

a. a. Rates

The rates for collection of Solid Waste from premises in the District shall be those rates that the Board may determine and establish from time to time by ordinance. The Board may establish rates for residential collection without establishing rates for commercial or industrial collection. (Amended by Ordinance 2021 01)

1. (1) Garbage Gray Cart Collection Services

38-gallon cart	\$ 23.42
64-gallon cart	\$ 27.82
96-gallon cart	\$ 44.97

2. (2) Additional Garbage Gray Carts

20 gallon cart

38-galloff cart	\$ 9.72
64-gallon cart	\$ 12.61
96-gallon cart	\$ 27.69

3. (3) Additional Recycling Cart (in excess of 1 recycled cart)

38-gallon cart N/A

64-gallon cart \$ 6.91 96-gallon cart \$ 6.91

4. (4) Additional Green Waste Cart (in excess of 2 green waste carts)

38-gallon cart N/A

64-gallon cart \$ 6.91

96-gallon cart \$ 6.91

<u>5.</u> (5) Sacramento County Surcharge \$ 2.00

<u>b.</u> Collection of Charges for Collection Services

The rates and charges imposed by this Chapter may be collected together with charges for any other service provided by the District. If all or any part of the bill is not paid, the District may discontinue any or all of the services for which the bill is rendered in the manner herein provided.

c. e. Billing

All solid waste accounts shall be billed monthly.

d. d. Due Date

All bills are due and payable on the date they are issued by the District.

e. e. Delinquency

A bill for service is delinquent if not paid and received at the Rancho Murieta Community Services District office by the 25th day of the month following the month in which the bill was mailed.

- <u>f.</u> <u>f.</u>—Delinquency Penalty
 - 1. —A one-time basic penalty of ten percent (10%) of the delinquent service charges shall be added to each delinquent bill for the first month the bill is delinquent.
 - 2. After levying the basic penalty provided in Section 4.03(f)(1)in the preceding subsection, the District shall thereafter levy an additional penalty of one percent (1%) per month to all delinquent charges and basic penalties remaining unpaid, until and unless the Board requests the County Auditor to include the amount of all delinquent rates, charges and

penalties for collection on the County property tax roll as set forth in Section 4.03(g)the succeeding subsection. Monies paid when any portion of an account is delinquent shall first be credited to interest and penalties, then to the delinquent portion of the bill, and then to the current portion of the bill.

g. g.—Collection of Delinquent Charges on County Tax Roll

All rates, charges, penalties, and interest, which remain delinquent, may be collected on the County property tax roll in the same manner as property taxes in accordance with Government Code section 61115(b), provided that the District shall first have given the property owner notice and an opportunity to be heard as provided by law. After delinquent amounts have been turned over to the County Auditor for collection, no payment shall be received by the District on the delinquent amounts except as collected by the County Tax Collector. (Added by Ordinance 2019-03)

4.04 4.04 Collection Hours and Collection Days

Residential collection starts no earlier than 7:00 a.m. and terminates no later than 5:00 p.m. Residential collection may occur on Tuesdays, Wednesdays, or Thursdays.

4.05 Carts, Containers, and Lawn and Leaf Bags

No person shall dump any Solid Waste nor deposit the same in anything except a cart for holding Solid Waste. Each cart shall be as follows:

a. a. Garbage Gray Cart

A heavy plastic receptacle with a rated capacity of at least thirty-two (32) and not more than ninety-six (96) gallons, having a hinged tight-fitting lid and wheels, that is approved by the District and is labeled appropriately labeled as a garbage cart.

b. <u>Green Organic</u> Waste Cart

A heavy plastic receptacle with a rated capacity at least thirty-two (32) gallons and not exceeding ninety-six (96) gallons, having a hinged, tight fitting lid and wheels that are approved for such purpose by the District and is appropriately labeled as a green an organic waste cart. Organic Waste is further governed by Section 9 of this Code.

c. Recycling Cart

A heavy plastic receptacle with a rated capacity of at least thirty-two (32) gallons and not more than ninety-six (96) gallons, having a hinged tight-fitting lid, and wheels that is approved for such purpose by the District and is appropriately labeled as a recycling cart.

d. d.—Used Oil Container

A plain copoly container provided by the District or its designee for the accumulation of used oil that is at least four (4) quarts in capacity, leak-proof, has a screw-on lid and has a label designating it for use as a used oil container.

e. e. Lawn and Leaf Bags

During the four (4) month period beginning October 1 and ending January 31 and annually thereafter during the term of this Contract, Service Recipients may place unlimited amounts of leaves at the curb alongside their GreenOrganic Waste Cart as part of Green Waste Collection Service. The leaves shall be placed in plastic lawn and leaf bags and closed in such a manner as to contain the leaves during Collection. Leaves must be generated by and at the Residential Service Unit wherein the leaves are collected. During this period, CONTRACTOR shall Collect and dispose of all leaves that are properly bagged and placed at the curb at no additional charge to the Service Recipient.

4.06 4.06 Solid Waste Burning

No person shall burn any Solid Waste within the District without having first complied with all rules and regulations of the District, the county, the air pollution control district and the state.

No person shall throw, place, scatter or deposit any Solid Waste, ExemptExcluded Waste, or other waste of any kind or composition in or upon any public street or highway in the District except as herein expressly authorized, nor throw, place, scatter or deposit any Solid Waste, ExemptExcluded Waste, or other waste of any kind or composition upon or below the surface of any premises in such a manner that the same is or may become a nuisance or endanger the public health.

SECTION 5.00 SECTION 5.00-Recyclable Materials - Property Rights - Collection by Unauthorized Persons

5.01 5.01 Property Rights

From time of placement of Recyclable Materials at the curb or in recycling shelters for collection in accordance with the District's recycling program, such Recyclable Materials shall be and become the property of the District or its authorized agent. It shall be a violation of the ordinance codified in this section for any person unauthorized by the District to collect or pick up or cause to be

collected or picked up any such items. Any and each such collection in violation hereof from one or more locations shall constitute a separate and distinct offense punishable as hereinafter provided.

5.02 5.02 Violation

Violation of any provision of this Chapter shall constitute a misdemeanor punishable in the manner prescribed by the laws of the State.

5.03 5.03 Recyclable Material—Owner's Rights

Nothing in Chapter 31 shall limit the right of any person to donate, sell, or otherwise dispose of his or her Recyclable Materials.

SECTION 6.00 SECTION 6.00 Construction and Demolition Refuse

6.01 6.01 Storage

No Solid Waste from building construction or demolition may be stored on site and in the open. All Solid Waste from construction and demolition shall be placed and contained in commercial type debris containers. Solid Waste, which may be transported by the wind shall be placed in suitable Containers daily and removed as necessary. Adequate storage capacity shall be provided to prevent littering of surrounding areas.

6.02 6.02 Disposal

Solid Waste from construction and demolition shall not be disposed in residential garbage, recycle or yard waste containers.

SECTION 7.00 SECTION 7.00 Dumping Solid Waste

7.01 7.01 On Public Property

No person shall dispose of or dump upon any public or commonly owned property or street of the District or upon any property of another, except such property as may be provided and set apart for such use by the District, Solid Waste, ExemptExcluded Waste, or other waste of any kind or composition. The Board may enter into a contract for the collection and disposal of the Solid Waste, and may provide such rules for the regulation thereof as it may from time to time deem best and necessary.

7.02 7.02 On Private Property

No person shall dispose of or dump upon any private property within the District any Solid Waste, <u>ExemptExcluded</u> Waste or other waste of any kind or composition.

SECTION 8.00 SECTION 8.0 Residential Solid Waste Collection Vehicles

No person authorized to engage in residential Solid Waste collection service shall operate any truck-mounted Solid Waste loading and/or compacting equipment or similar device in any manner so as to create any noise exceeding seventy-five (75) dBA, measured at a distance of twenty-five (25) feet measured at an elevation of five (5) feet above ground level using the "A" scale of the standard sound level meter at slow response from the equipment in an open. If requested by the District, residential collection vehicles are to be tested annually during the months of March and April, beginning March of 2006, and certificates of testing showing that the vehicles met the requirements of this section.

SECTION 9.00 Mandatory Organic Waste Disposal Reduction

9.01 Purpose and Findings

The District finds and declares:

- a. State recycling law, Assembly Bill 939 of 1989, the California Integrated Waste Management Act of 1989 (California Public Resources Code Section 40000, et seq., as amended, supplemented, superseded, and replaced from time to time), requires cities and counties to reduce, reuse, and recycle (including composting) Solid Waste generated in their jurisdictions to the maximum extent feasible before any incineration or landfill disposal of waste, to conserve water, energy, and other natural resources, and to protect the environment.
- b. State recycling law, Assembly Bill 341 of 2011 (approved by the Governor of the State of California on October 5, 2011, which amended Sections 41730, 41731, 41734, 41735, 41736, 41800, 42926, 44004, and 50001 of, and added Sections 40004, 41734.5, and 41780.01 and Chapter 12.8 (commencing with Section 42649) to Part 3 of Division 30 of, and added and repealed Section 41780.02 of, the Public Resources Code, as amended, supplemented, superseded and replaced from time to time), places requirements on businesses and Multi-Family property owners that generate a specified threshold amount of Solid Waste to arrange for recycling services and requires jurisdictions to implement a Mandatory Commercial Recycling program.
- c. State organics recycling law, Assembly Bill 1826 of 2014 (approved by the Governor of the State of California on September 28, 2014, which added Chapter 12.9 (commencing with Section 42649.8) to Part 3 of Division 30 of the Public Resources Code, relating to Solid Waste, as amended.

supplemented, superseded, and replaced from time to time), requires businesses and Multi-Family property owners that generate a specified threshold amount of Solid Waste, Recycling, and Organic Waste per week to arrange for recycling services for that waste, requires jurisdictions to implement a recycling program to divert Organic Waste from businesses subject to the law, and requires jurisdictions to implement a Mandatory Commercial Organics Recycling program.

- d. SB 1383, the Short-lived Climate Pollutant Reduction Act of 2016, requires CalRecycle to develop regulations to reduce organics in landfills as a source of methane. The regulations place requirements on multiple entities including jurisdictions, residential households, Commercial Businesses and business owners, Commercial Edible Food Generators, haulers, Self-Haulers, Food Recovery Organizations, and Food Recovery Services to support achievement of Statewide Organic Waste disposal reduction targets.
- e. SB 1383, the Short-lived Climate Pollutant Reduction Act of 2016, requires jurisdictions to adopt and enforce an ordinance or enforceable mechanism to implement relevant provisions of SB 1383

 Regulations. This ordinance will also help reduce food insecurity by requiring Commercial Edible Food Generators to arrange to have the maximum amount of their Edible Food, that would otherwise be disposed, be recovered for human consumption.

9.02 Definitions

<u>In addition to those definitions provided in Section 1 of this Code, whenever in Section 9 of this Code, the following words or phrases are used; they shall have the meanings respectively ascribed to them in this section:</u>

- a. "Blue Container" has the same meaning as in 14 CCR Section 18982.2(a)(5) and shall be used for the purpose of storage and collection of Source Separated Recyclable Materials or Source Separated Blue Container Organic Waste.
- b. "CalRecycle" means California's Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery, which is the
 Department designated with responsibility for developing, implementing, and enforcing SB 1383

 Regulations on jurisdictions (and others).
- c. "California Code of Regulations" or "CCR" means the State of California Code of Regulations. CCR references in this ordinance are preceded with a number that refers to the relevant Title of the CCR (e.g., "14 CCR" refers to Title 14 of CCR).
- d. "Commercial Business" or "Commercial" means a firm, partnership, proprietorship, joint-stock company, corporation, or association, whether for-profit or nonprofit, strip mall, industrial facility, or a multifamily residential dwelling, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section

- 18982(a)(6). A Multi-Family Residential Dwelling that consists of fewer than five (5) units is not a Commercial Business for purposes of implementing this ordinance.
- e. "Commercial Edible Food Generator" includes a Tier One or a Tier Two Commercial Edible Food Generator as defined in Section 9.02 of this Code or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(73) and (a)(74). For the purposes of this definition, Food Recovery Organizations and Food Recovery Services are not Commercial Edible Food Generators pursuant to 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(7).
- <u>f. "Compliance Review" means a review of records by the District to determine compliance with this ordinance.</u>
- g. "Community Composting" means any activity that composts green material, agricultural material, food material, and vegetative food material, alone or in combination, and the total amount of feedstock and Compost on-site at any one time does not exceed 100 cubic yards and 750 square feet, as specified in 14 CCR Section 17855(a)(4); or, as otherwise defined by 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(8).
- h. "Compost" has the same meaning as in 14 CCR Section 17896.2(a)(4), which stated, as of the effective date of this ordinance, that "Compost" means the product resulting from the controlled biological decomposition of organic Solid Wastes that are Source Separated from the municipal Solid Waste stream, or which are separated at a centralized facility.
- i. "Compostable Plastics" or "Compostable Plastic" means plastic materials that meet the ASTM <u>D6400 standard for compostability, or as otherwise described in 14 CCR Section 18984.1(a)(1)(A) or 18984.2(a)(1)(C).</u>
- i. "Container Contamination" or "Contaminated Container" means a container, regardless of color, that contains Prohibited Container Contaminants, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(55).
- k. "C&D" means construction and demolition debris.
- I. "Designee" means an entity that the District contracts with or otherwise arranges to carry out any of the District's responsibilities of this ordinance as authorized in 14 CCR Section 18981.2. A Designee may be a government entity, a hauler, a private entity, or a combination of those entities.
- m. "District Enforcement Official" means the District General Manager or authorized Designee(s) who is/are partially or whole responsible for enforcing the ordinance.

- n. "Edible Food" means food intended for human consumption, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(18). For the purposes of this ordinance or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(18), "Edible Food" is not Solid Waste if it is recovered and not discarded. Nothing in this ordinance or in 14 CCR, Division 7, Chapter 12 requires or authorizes the Recovery of Edible Food that does not meet the food safety requirements of the California Retail Food Code.
- o. "Enforcement Action" means an action of the District to address non-compliance with this ordinance including, but not limited to, issuing administrative citations, fines, penalties, or using other remedies.
- p. "Excluded Waste" means hazardous substance, hazardous waste, infectious waste, designated waste, volatile, corrosive, medical waste, infectious, regulated radioactive waste, and toxic substances or material that facility operator(s), which receive materials from the District and its generators, reasonably believe(s) would, as a result of or upon acceptance, transfer, processing, or disposal, be a violation of local, State, or Federal law, regulation, or ordinance, including: land use restrictions or conditions, waste that cannot be disposed of in Class III landfills or accepted at the facility by permit conditions, waste that in District's, or its Designee's reasonable opinion would present a significant risk to human health or the environment, cause a nuisance or otherwise create or expose District, or its Designee, to potential liability; but not including de minimis volumes or concentrations of waste of a type and amount normally found in Single-Family or Multi-Family Solid Waste after implementation of programs for the safe collection, processing, recycling, treatment, and disposal of household batteries and motor oil and filters in compliance with Sections 41500 and 41802 of the California Public Resources Code.
- q. "Food Distributor" means a company that distributes food to entities including, but not limited to, Supermarkets and Grocery Stores, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(22).
- r. "Food Facility" has the same meaning as in Section 113789 of the Health and Safety Code.
- s. "Food Recovery" means actions to collect and distribute food for human consumption that otherwise would be disposed, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(24).
- t. "Food Recovery Organization" means an entity that engages in the collection or receipt of Edible Food from Commercial Edible Food Generators and distributes that Edible Food to the public for Food Recovery either directly or through other entities or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(25), including, but not limited to:

1. A food bank as defined in Section 113783 of the Health and Safety Code;

- 2. A nonprofit charitable organization as defined in Section 113841 of the Health and Safety code; and.
- 3. A nonprofit charitable temporary food facility as defined in Section 113842 of the Health and Safety Code.

A Food Recovery Organization is not a Commercial Edible Food Generator for the purposes of this ordinance and implementation of 14 CCR, Division 7, Chapter 12 pursuant to 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(7). If the definition in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(25) for Food Recovery Organization differs from this definition, the definition in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(25) shall apply to this ordinance.

- u. "Food Recovery Service" means a person or entity that collects and transports Edible Food from a Commercial Edible Food Generator to a Food Recovery Organization or other entities for Food Recovery, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(26). A Food Recovery Service is not a Commercial Edible Food Generator for the purposes of this ordinance and implementation of 14 CCR, Division 7, Chapter 12 pursuant to 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(7).
- v. "Food Scraps" means all food such as, but not limited to, fruits, vegetables, meat, poultry, seafood, shellfish, bones, rice, beans, pasta, bread, cheese, and eggshells. Food Scraps excludes fats, oils, and grease when such materials are Source Separated from other Food Scraps.
- w. "Food Service Provider" means an entity primarily engaged in providing food services to institutional, governmental, Commercial, or industrial locations of others based on contractual arrangements with these types of organizations, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(27).
- x. "Food-Soiled Paper" is compostable paper material that has come in contact with food or liquid, such as, but not limited to, compostable paper plates, paper coffee cups, napkins, pizza boxes, and milk cartons.
- y. "Food Waste" means Food Scraps, Food-Soiled Paper, and Compostable Plastics.
- z. "Gray Container" has the same meaning as in 14 CCR Section 18982.2(a)(28) and shall be used for the purpose of storage and collection of Gray Container Waste.
- <u>aa. "Gray Container Waste" means Solid Waste that is collected in a Gray Container that is part of a three-container Organic Waste collection service that prohibits the placement of Organic Waste in the Gray Container as specified in 14 CCR Sections 18984.1(a) and (b), or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 17402(a)(6.5).</u>

bb. "Green Container" has the same meaning as in 14 CCR Section 18982.2(a)(29) and shall be used

- for the purpose of storage and collection of Source Separated Green Container Organic Waste.
- cc. "Grocery Store" means a store primarily engaged in the retail sale of canned food; dry goods; fresh fruits and vegetables; fresh meats, fish, and poultry; and any area that is not separately owned within the store where the food is prepared and served, including a bakery, deli, and meat and seafood departments, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(30).
- dd. "Hauler Route" means the designated itinerary or sequence of stops for each segment of the District's collection service area, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(31.5).
- ee. "High Diversion Organic Waste Processing Facility" means a facility that is in compliance with the reporting requirements of 14 CCR Section 18815.5(d) and meets or exceeds an annual average Mixed Waste organic content Recovery rate of 50 percent between January 1, 2022 and December 31, 2024, and 75 percent after January 1, 2025, as calculated pursuant to 14 CCR Section 18815.5(e) for Organic Waste received from the "Mixed waste organic collection stream" as defined in 14 CCR Section 17402(a)(11.5); or, as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(33).
- ff. "Inspection" means a site visit where the District reviews records, containers, and an entity's collection, handling, recycling, or landfill disposal of Organic Waste or Edible Food handling to determine if the entity is complying with requirements set forth in this ordinance, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(35).
- gg. "Large Event" means an event, including, but not limited to, a sporting event or a flea market, that charges an admission price, or is operated by a local agency, and serves an average of more than 2,000 individuals per day of operation of the event, at a location that includes, but is not limited to, a public, nonprofit, or privately owned park, parking lot, golf course, street system, or other open space when being used for an event. If the definition in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(38) differs from this definition, the definition in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(38) shall apply to this ordinance.
- hh. "Large Venue" means a permanent venue facility that annually seats or serves an average of more than 2,000 individuals within the grounds of the facility per day of operation of the venue facility. For purposes of this ordinance and implementation of 14 CCR, Division 7, Chapter 12, a venue facility includes, but is not limited to, a public, nonprofit, or privately owned or operated stadium, amphitheater, arena, hall, amusement park, conference or civic center, zoo, aquarium, airport, racetrack, horse track, performing arts center, fairground, museum, theater, or other public attraction facility. For purposes of this ordinance and implementation of 14 CCR, Division 7, Chapter 12, a site under common ownership or control that includes more than one Large Venue that is contiguous with other Large Venues in the site, is a single Large Venue. If the definition in

- 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(39) differs from this definition, the definition in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(39) shall apply to this ordinance.
- <u>ii.</u> "Local Education Agency" means a school district, charter school, or county office of education that is not subject to the control of city or county regulations related to Solid Waste, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(40).
- <u>ij.</u> "Multi-Family Residential Dwelling" or "Multi-Family" means of, from, or pertaining to residential premises with five (5) or more dwelling units. Multi-Family premises do not include hotels, motels, or other transient occupancy facilities, which are considered Commercial Businesses.
- kk. "Non-Compostable Paper" includes but is not limited to paper that is coated in a plastic material that will not breakdown in the composting process, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(41).
- II. "Non-Organic Recyclables" means non-putrescible and non-hazardous recyclable wastes including but not limited to bottles, cans, metals, plastics and glass, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(43).
- mm. "Notice of Violation (NOV)" means a notice that a violation has occurred that includes a compliance date to avoid an action to seek penalties, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(45) or further explained in 14 CCR Section 18995.4.
- nn. "Organic Waste Generator" means a person or entity that is responsible for the initial creation of Organic Waste, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(48).
- oo. "Paper Products" include, but are not limited to, paper janitorial supplies, cartons, wrapping, packaging, file folders, hanging files, corrugated boxes, tissue, and toweling, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(51).
- pp. "Printing and Writing Papers" include, but are not limited to, copy, xerographic, watermark, cotton fiber, offset, forms, computer printout paper, white wove envelopes, manila envelopes, book paper, note pads, writing tablets, newsprint, and other uncoated writing papers, posters, index cards, calendars, brochures, reports, magazines, and publications, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(54).
- <u>qq. "Prohibited Container Contaminants" means the following: (i) discarded materials placed in the Blue Container that are not identified as acceptable Source Separated Recyclable Materials for the District's Blue Container; (ii) discarded materials placed in the Green Container that are not identified as acceptable Source Separated Green Container Organic Waste for the District's Green Container; (iii) discarded materials placed in the Gray Container that are acceptable Source</u>

- <u>Separated Recyclable Materials and/or Source Separated Green Container Organic Wastes to be placed in District's Green Container and/or Blue Container; and, (iv) Excluded Waste placed in any container.</u>
- <u>rr.</u> "Recovered Organic Waste Products" means products made from California, landfill-diverted recovered Organic Waste processed in a permitted or otherwise authorized facility, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(60).
- ss. "Recovery" means any activity or process described in 14 CCR Section 18983.1(b), or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(49).
- tt. "Recycled-Content Paper" means Paper Products and Printing and Writing Paper that consists of at least 30 percent, by fiber weight, postconsumer fiber, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(61).
- <u>uu. "Renewable Gas" means gas derived from Organic Waste that has been diverted from a California landfill and processed at an in-vessel digestion facility that is permitted or otherwise authorized by 14 CCR to recycle Organic Waste, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(62).</u>
- vv. "Restaurant" means an establishment primarily engaged in the retail sale of food and drinks for on-premises or immediate consumption, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(64).
- ww. "Route Review" means a visual Inspection of containers along a Hauler Route for the purpose of determining Container Contamination, and may include mechanical Inspection methods such as the use of cameras, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(65).
- xx. "SB 1383" means Senate Bill 1383 of 2016 approved by the Governor on September 19, 2016, which added Sections 39730.5, 39730.6, 39730.7, and 39730.8 to the Health and Safety Code, and added Chapter 13.1 (commencing with Section 42652) to Part 3 of Division 30 of the Public Resources Code, establishing methane emissions reduction targets in a Statewide effort to reduce emissions of short-lived climate pollutants as amended, supplemented, superseded, and replaced from time to time.
- yy. "SB 1383 Regulations" or "SB 1383 Regulatory" means or refers to, for the purposes of this ordinance, the Short-Lived Climate Pollutants: Organic Waste Reduction regulations developed by CalRecycle and adopted in 2020 that created 14 CCR, Division 7, Chapter 12 and amended portions of regulations of 14 CCR and 27 CCR.
- zz. "Self-Hauler" means a person, who hauls Solid Waste, Organic Waste or recyclable material he or she has generated to another person. Self-hauler also includes a person who back-hauls waste, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(66). Back-haul means generating and

transporting Organic Waste to a destination owned and operated by the generator using the generator's own employees and equipment, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(66)(A).

- <u>aaa. "Single-Family" means of, from, or pertaining to any residential premises with fewer than five</u> (5) units.
- bbb. "Solid Waste" has the same meaning as defined in State Public Resources Code Section 40191, which defines Solid Waste as all putrescible and nonputrescible solid, semisolid, and liquid wastes, including garbage, trash, refuse, paper, rubbish, ashes, industrial wastes, demolition and construction wastes, abandoned vehicles and parts thereof, discarded home and industrial appliances, dewatered, treated, or chemically fixed sewage sludge which is not hazardous waste, manure, vegetable or animal solid and semi-solid wastes, and other discarded solid and semisolid wastes, with the exception that Solid Waste does not include any of the following wastes:
 - 1. Hazardous waste, as defined in the State Public Resources Code Section 40141.
 - Radioactive waste regulated pursuant to the State Radiation Control Law (Chapter 8
 (commencing with Section 114960) of Part 9 of Division 104 of the State Health and Safety Code).
 - 3. Medical waste regulated pursuant to the State Medical Waste Management Act (Part 14 (commencing with Section 117600) of Division 104 of the State Health and Safety Code).
 Untreated medical waste shall not be disposed of in a Solid Waste landfill, as defined in State Public Resources Code Section 40195.1. Medical waste that has been treated and deemed to be Solid Waste shall be regulated pursuant to Division 30 of the State Public Resources Code.
- ccc. "Source Separated" means materials, including commingled recyclable materials, that have been separated or kept separate from the Solid Waste stream, at the point of generation, for the purpose of additional sorting or processing those materials for recycling or reuse in order to return them to the economic mainstream in the form of raw material for new, reused, or reconstituted products, which meet the quality standards necessary to be used in the marketplace, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 17402.5(b)(4). For the purposes of the ordinance, Source Separated shall include separation of materials by the generator, property owner, property owner's employee, property manager, or property manager's employee into different containers for the purpose of collection such that Source Separated materials are separated from Gray Container Waste or other Solid Waste for the purposes of collection and processing.
- ddd. "Source Separated Green Container Organic Waste" means Source Separated Organic Waste that can be placed in a Green Container that is specifically intended for the separate collection of

- <u>Organic Waste by the generator, excluding Source Separated Blue Container Organic Waste, carpets, Non-Compostable Paper, and textiles.</u>
- <u>eee. "Source Separated Recyclable Materials" means Source Separated Non-Organic Recyclables</u> <u>and Source Separated Blue Container Organic Waste.</u>
- fff. "State" means the State of California.
- ggg. "Supermarket" means a full-line, self-service retail store with gross annual sales of two million dollars (\$2,000,000), or more, and which sells a line of dry grocery, canned goods, or nonfood items and some perishable items, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(71).
- <u>hhh.</u> "Tier One Commercial Edible Food Generator" means a Commercial Edible Food Generator that is one of the following:
 - 1. Supermarket.
 - 2. Grocery Store with a total facility size equal to or greater than 10,000 square feet.
 - 3. Food Service Provider.
 - 4. Food Distributor.
 - 5. Wholesale Food Vendor.

If the definition in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(73) of Tier One Commercial Edible Food Generator differs from this definition, the definition in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(73) shall apply to this ordinance.

- <u>iii. "Tier Two Commercial Edible Food Generator" means a Commercial Edible Food Generator that is one of the following:</u>
 - 1. Restaurant with 250 or more seats, or a total facility size equal to or greater than 5,000 square feet.
 - 2. Hotel with an on-site Food Facility and 200 or more rooms.
 - 3. Health facility with an on-site Food Facility and 100 or more beds.
 - 4. Large Venue.
 - 5. Large Event.

- 6. A State agency with a cafeteria with 250 or more seats or total cafeteria facility size equal to or greater than 5,000 square feet.
- 7. A Local Education Agency facility with an on-site Food Facility.

If the definition in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(74) of Tier Two Commercial Edible Food Generator differs from this definition, the definition in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(74) shall apply to this ordinance.

ijj. "Wholesale Food Vendor" means a business or establishment engaged in the merchant wholesale distribution of food, where food (including fruits and vegetables) is received, shipped, stored, prepared for distribution to a retailer, warehouse, distributor, or other destination, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 189852(a)(76).

9.03 Requirements for Single-Family Generators

Single-Family Organic Waste Generators shall comply with the following requirements:

- a. Shall subscribe to District's Organic Waste collection services for all Organic Waste generated as described below in Section 9.03. District shall have the right to review the number and size of a generator's containers to evaluate adequacy of capacity provided for each type of collection service for proper separation of materials and containment of materials; and, Single-Family generators shall adjust its service level for its collection services as requested by the District.
- b. Shall participate in the District's Organic Waste collection service(s) by placing designated materials in designated containers as described below, and shall not place Prohibited Container Contaminants in collection containers. Generator shall place Source Separated Green Container Organic Waste, including Food Waste, in the Green Container; Source Separated Recyclable Materials in the Blue Container; and Gray Container Waste in the Gray Container. Generators shall not place materials designated for the Gray Container into the Green Container or Blue Container.

9.04 Requirements for Commercial Businesses

Generators that are Commercial Businesses, including Multi-Family Residential Dwellings, shall:

a. Subscribe to District's three container collection services and comply with requirements of those services as described below in Section 9.04, except Commercial Businesses that meet the Self-Hauler requirements in Section 9.07 of this Code. District shall have the right to review the number and size of a generator's containers and frequency of collection to evaluate adequacy of

- capacity provided for each type of collection service for proper separation of materials and containment of materials; and, Commercial Businesses shall adjust their service level for their collection services as requested by the District.
- b. Except Commercial Businesses that meet the Self-Hauler requirements in Section 9.07 of this Code, participate in the District's Organic Waste collection service(s) by placing designated materials in designated containers as described below. Generator shall place Source Separated Green Container Organic Waste, including Food Waste, in the Green Container; Source Separated Recyclable Materials in the Blue Container; and Gray Container Waste in the Gray Container. Generator shall not place materials designated for the Gray Container into the Green Container or Blue Container.
- c. Supply and allow access to adequate number, size and location of collection containers with sufficient labels or colors conforming with this section for employees, contractors, tenants, and customers, consistent with District's Blue Container, Green Container, and Gray Container collection service or, if self-hauling, per the Commercial Businesses' instructions to support its compliance with its self-haul program, in accordance with Section 9.07.
- d. Excluding Multi-Family Residential Dwellings, provide containers for the collection of Source Separated Green Container Organic Waste and Source Separated Recyclable Materials in all indoor and outdoor areas where disposal Such containers do not need to be provided in restrooms. If a Commercial Business does not generate any of the materials that would be collected in one type of container, then the business does not have to provide that particular container in all areas where disposal containers are provided for customers. Pursuant to 14 CCR Section 18984.9(b), the containers provided by the business shall have either:
 - 1. A body or lid that conforms with the container colors provided through the collection service provided by District, with either lids conforming to the color requirements or bodies conforming to the color requirements or both lids and bodies conforming to color requirements. A Commercial Business is not required to replace functional containers, including containers purchased prior to January 1, 2022, that do not comply with the requirements of the subsection prior to the end of the useful life of those containers, or prior to January 1, 2036, whichever comes first.
 - 2. Container labels that include language or graphic images, or both, indicating the primary material accepted and the primary materials prohibited in that container, or containers with imprinted text or graphic images that indicate the primary materials accepted and primary materials prohibited in the container. Pursuant 14 CCR Section 18984.8, the container labeling requirements are required on new containers commencing January 1, 2022.

- e. Multi-Family Residential Dwellings are not required to comply with container placement requirements or labeling requirement in Section 9.04 pursuant to 14 CCR Section 18984.9(b).
- f. To the extent practical through education, training, Inspection, and/or other measures, excluding Multi-Family Residential Dwellings, prohibit employees from placing materials in a container not designated for those materials per the District's Blue Container, Green Container, and Gray Container collection service or, if self-hauling, per the Commercial Businesses' instructions to support its compliance with its self-haul program, in accordance with Section 9.07.
- g. Excluding Multi-Family Residential Dwellings, periodically inspect Blue Containers, Green Containers, and Gray Containers for contamination and inform employees if containers are contaminated and of the requirements to keep contaminants out of those containers pursuant to 14 CCR Section 18984.9(b)(3).
- h. Annually provide information to employees, contractors, tenants, and customers about Organic Waste Recovery requirements and about proper sorting of Source Separated Green Container Organic Waste and Source Separated Recyclable Materials.
- i. Provide education information before or within fourteen (14) days of occupation of the premises to new tenants that describes requirements to keep Source Separated Green Container Organic Waste and Source Separated Recyclable Materials separate from Gray Container Waste (when applicable) and the location of containers and the rules governing their use at each property.
- <u>j. Provide or arrange access for District or its agent to their properties during all Inspections conducted in accordance with Section 9.09 of this Code to confirm compliance with the requirements of this ordinance.</u>
- <u>k. If a Commercial Business wants to self haul, meet the Self-Hauler requirements in Section 9.07 of</u> this Code.
- I. Nothing in this Section prohibits a generator from preventing or reducing waste generation, managing Organic Waste on site, or using a Community Composting site pursuant to 14 CCR Section 18984.9(c).
- m. Commercial Businesses that are Tier One or Tier Two Commercial Edible Food Generators shall comply with Food Recovery requirements, pursuant to Section 9.06.

9.05 Waivers for Generators

a. De Minimis Waivers. District may waive a Commercial Business' obligation (including Multi-Family Residential Dwellings) to comply with some or all of the Organic Waste requirements of this

ordinance if the Commercial Business provides documentation that the business generates below a certain amount of Organic Waste material as described in subsection (a)(2) below. Commercial Businesses requesting a de minimis waiver shall:

- 1. Submit an application specifying the services that they are requesting a waiver from and provide documentation as noted in subsection (a)(2) below.
- 2. Provide documentation that either:
 - (a) The Commercial Business' total Solid Waste collection service is two cubic yards or more per week and Organic Waste subject to collection in a Blue Container or Green Container comprises less than 20 gallons per week per applicable container of the business' total waste; or,
 - (b) The Commercial Business' total Solid Waste collection service is less than two cubic yards per week and Organic Waste subject to collection in a Blue Container or Green Container comprises less than 10 gallons per week per applicable container of the business' total waste.
- 3. Notify the District if circumstances change such that Commercial Business's Organic Waste exceeds threshold required for waiver, in which case waiver will be rescinded.
- 4. Provide written verification of eligibility for de minimis waiver every 5 years, if District has approved de minimis waiver.
- b. Physical Space Waivers. District may waive a Commercial Business' or property owner's obligations (including Multi-Family Residential Dwellings) to comply with some or all of the recyclable materials and/or Organic Waste collection service requirements if the District has evidence from its own staff, a hauler, licensed architect, or licensed engineer demonstrating that the premises lacks adequate space for the collection containers required for compliance with the Organic Waste collection requirements of Section 9.04.

Commercial Business or property owner may request a physical space waiver through the following process:

- Submit an application form specifying the type(s) of collection services for which they are requesting a compliance waiver.
- Provide documentation that the premises lacks adequate space for Blue Containers and/or Green Containers including documentation from its hauler, licensed architect, or licensed engineer.

- 3. Provide written verification to District that it is still eligible for physical space waiver every five years, if District has approved application for a physical space waiver.
- c. Collection Frequency Waiver. District, at its discretion and in accordance with 14 CCR Section 18984.11(a)(3), may allow the owner or tenant of any residence, premises, business establishment or industry that subscribes to the District's three-container Organic Waste collection service to arrange for the collection of their Blue Container, Gray Container, or both once every fourteen days, rather than once per week.

9.06 Requirements for Commercial Edible Food Generators

- a. Tier One Commercial Edible Food Generators must comply with the requirements of this Section 9 commencing January 1, 2023, and Tier Two Commercial Edible Food Generators must comply commencing January 1, 2024, pursuant to 14 CCR Section 18991.3.
- <u>b. Large Venue or Large Event operators not providing food services, but allowing for food to be provided by others, shall require Food Facilities operating at the Large Venue or Large Event to comply with the requirements of this Section, commencing January 1, 2024.</u>
- c. Commercial Edible Food Generators shall comply with the following requirements:
 - 1. Arrange to recover the maximum amount of Edible Food that would otherwise be disposed.
 - 2. Contract with, or enter into a written agreement with Food Recovery Organizations or Food Recovery Services for: (i) the collection of Edible Food for Food Recovery; or, (ii) acceptance of the Edible Food that the Commercial Edible Food Generator self-hauls to the Food Recovery Organization for Food Recovery.
 - 3. Shall not intentionally spoil Edible Food that is capable of being recovered by a Food Recovery Organization or a Food Recovery Service.
 - 4. Allow District's designated enforcement entity or designated third party enforcement entity to access the premises and review records pursuant to 14 CCR Section 18991.4.
 - 5. Keep records that include the following information, or as otherwise specified in 14 CCR Section 18991.4:
 - (a) A list of each Food Recovery Service or organization that collects or receives its Edible Food pursuant to a contract or written agreement established under 14 CCR Section 18991.3(b).

- (b) A copy of all contracts or written agreements established under 14 CCR Section 18991.3(b).
- (c) A record of the following information for each of those Food Recovery Services or Food Recovery Organizations:
 - (i) The name, address and contact information of the Food Recovery Service or Food Recovery Organization.
 - (ii) The types of food that will be collected by or self-hauled to the Food Recovery Service or Food Recovery Organization.
 - (iii) The established frequency that food will be collected or self-hauled.
 - (iv) The quantity of food, measured in pounds recovered per month, collected or self-hauled to a Food Recovery Service or Food Recovery Organization for Food Recovery.
- d. Nothing in this ordinance shall be construed to limit or conflict with the protections provided by the California Good Samaritan Food Donation Act of 2017, the Federal Good Samaritan Act, or share table and school food donation guidance pursuant to Senate Bill 557 of 2017 (approved by the Governor of the State of California on September 25, 2017, which added Article 13 [commencing with Section 49580] to Chapter 9 of Part 27 of Division 4 of Title 2 of the Education Code, and to amend Section 114079 of the Health and Safety Code, relating to food safety, as amended, supplemented, superseded and replaced from time to time).

9.07 Requirements for Haulers

- a. Exclusive franchise haulers providing residential, Commercial, or industrial Organic Waste collection services to generators within the District's boundaries shall meet the following requirements and standards as a condition of approval of a contract, agreement, or other authorization with the District to collect Organic Waste:
 - 1. Through written notice to the District annually on or before January 1, identify the facilities to which they will transport Organic Waste including facilities for Source Separated Recyclable Materials and Source Separated Green Container Organic Waste.
 - 2. Transport Source Separated Recyclable Materials and Source Separated Green Container
 Organic Waste to a facility, operation, activity, or property that recovers Organic Waste as defined in 14 CCR, Division 7, Chapter 12, Article 2.

- 3. Obtain approval from the District to haul Organic Waste, unless it is transporting Source

 Separated Organic Waste to a Community Composting site or lawfully transporting C&D in a manner that complies with 14 CCR Section 18989.1, and District's C&D ordinance.
- b. Exclusive franchise haulers authorized to collect Organic Waste shall comply with education, equipment, signage, container labeling, container color, contamination monitoring, reporting, and other requirements contained within its franchise agreement entered into with District.

9.08 Self-Hauler Requirements

- a. Self-Haulers shall source separate all recyclable materials and Organic Waste (materials that District otherwise requires generators to separate for collection in the District's organics and recycling collection program) generated on-site from Solid Waste in a manner consistent with 14 CCR Sections 18984.1 and 18984.2, or shall haul Organic Waste to a High Diversion Organic Waste Processing Facility as specified in 14 CCR Section 18984.3.
- b. Self-Haulers shall haul their Source Separated Recyclable Materials to a facility that recovers those materials; and haul their Source Separated Green Container Organic Waste to a Solid Waste facility, operation, activity, or property that processes or recovers Source Separated Organic Waste. Alternatively, Self-Haulers may haul Organic Waste to a High Diversion Organic Waste Processing Facility.
- c. Self-Haulers that are Commercial Businesses (including Multi-Family Residential Dwellings) shall keep a record of the amount of Organic Waste delivered to each Solid Waste facility, operation, activity, or property that processes or recovers Organic Waste; this record shall be subject to Inspection by the District. The records shall include the following information:
 - 1. Delivery receipts and weight tickets from the entity accepting the waste.
 - 2. The amount of material in cubic yards or tons transported by the generator to each entity.
 - 3. If the material is transported to an entity that does not have scales on-site, or employs scales incapable of weighing the Self-Hauler's vehicle in a manner that allows it to determine the weight of materials received, the Self-Hauler is not required to record the weight of material but shall keep a record of the entities that received the Organic Waste.
- d. A residential Organic Waste Generator that self hauls Organic Waste is not required to record or report information in subsections (c) and (d).

9.09 Inspections and Investigations by District

- a. District representatives and/or its designated entity, including Designees are authorized to conduct Inspections and investigations, at random or otherwise, of any collection container, collection vehicle loads, or transfer, processing, or disposal facility for materials collected from generators, or Source Separated materials to confirm compliance with this ordinance by Organic Waste Generators, Commercial Businesses (including Multi-Family Residential Dwellings), property owners, Commercial Edible Food Generators, haulers, Self-Haulers, Food Recovery Services, and Food Recovery Organizations, subject to applicable laws. This Section does not allow District to enter the interior of a private residential property for Inspection.
- b. Regulated entity shall provide or arrange for access during all Inspections (with the exception of residential property interiors) and shall cooperate with the District's employee or its designated entity/Designee during such Inspections and investigations. Such Inspections and investigations may include confirmation of proper placement of materials in containers, Edible Food Recovery activities, records, or any other requirement of this ordinance described herein. Failure to provide or arrange for: (i) access to an entity's premises; or (ii) access to records for any Inspection or investigation is a violation of this ordinance and may result in penalties described.
- c. Any records obtained by the District during its Inspections and other reviews shall be subject to the requirements and applicable disclosure exemptions of the Public Records Act as set forth in Government Code Section 6250 et seq.
- d. District representatives, its designated entity, and/or Designee are authorized to conduct any Inspections, or other investigations as reasonably necessary to further the goals of this ordinance, subject to applicable laws.
- e. District shall receive written complaints from persons regarding an entity that may be potentially non-compliant with SB 1383 Regulations, including receipt of anonymous complaints.

9.10 Enforcement

a. Violation of any provision of this ordinance shall constitute grounds for issuance of a Notice of Violation and assessment of a fine by the District Enforcement Official or representative. Enforcement Actions under this ordinance are issuance of an administrative citation and assessment of a fine. The District's procedures on imposition of administrative fines are hereby incorporated in their entirety, as modified from time to time, and shall govern the imposition, enforcement, collection, and review of administrative citations issued to enforce this ordinance and any rule or regulation adopted pursuant to this ordinance, except as otherwise indicated in this ordinance.

- b. Other remedies allowed by law may be used, including civil action or prosecution as misdemeanor or infraction. District may pursue civil actions in the California courts to seek recovery of unpaid administrative citations. District may choose to delay court action until such time as a sufficiently large number of violations, or cumulative size of violations exist such that court action is a reasonable use of District staff and resources.
- c. Enforcement pursuant to this ordinance may be undertaken by the District Enforcement Official, which may be the District General Manager or designee.

d. Process for Enforcement

- 1. District Enforcement Officials and/or their Designee will monitor compliance with the ordinance randomly and through Compliance Reviews, Route Reviews, investigation of complaints, and an Inspection program. Section 9.09 establishes District's right to conduct Inspections and investigations.
- 2. District may issue an official notification to notify regulated entities of its obligations under the ordinance.
- 3. District shall issue a Notice of Violation requiring compliance within 60 days of issuance of the notice.
- 4. Absent compliance by the respondent within the deadline set forth in the Notice of Violation, District shall commence an action to impose penalties, via an administrative citation and fine. Notices shall be sent to "owner" at the official address of the owner maintained by the tax collector for the District or if no such address is available, to the owner at the address of the dwelling or Commercial property or to the party responsible for paying for the collection services, depending upon available information

e. Penalty Amounts for Types of Violations

- The penalty levels are as follows:
- 1. For a first violation, the amount of the base penalty shall be \$50 to \$100 per violation.
- 2. For a second violation, the amount of the base penalty shall be \$100 to \$200 per violation.
- 3. For a third or subsequent violation, the amount of the base penalty shall be \$250 to \$500 per violation.
- f. Factors Considered in Determining Penalty Amount

The following factors shall be used to determine the amount of the penalty for each violation within the appropriate penalty amount range:

- 1. The nature, circumstances, and severity of the violation(s).
- 2. The violator's ability to pay.
- 3. The willfulness of the violator's misconduct.
- 4. Whether the violator took measures to avoid or mitigate violations of this chapter.
- 5. Evidence of any economic benefit resulting from the violation(s).
- 6. The deterrent effect of the penalty on the violator.
- 7. Whether the violation(s) were due to conditions outside the control of the violator.
- g. Compliance Deadline Extension Considerations

The District may extend the compliance deadlines set forth in a Notice of Violation issued in accordance with Section 9.10 if it finds that there are extenuating circumstances beyond the control of the respondent that make compliance within the deadlines impracticable, including the following:

- 1. Acts of God such as earthquakes, wildfires, flooding, and other emergencies or natural disasters;
- 2. Delays in obtaining discretionary permits or other government agency approvals; or,
- 3. Deficiencies in Organic Waste recycling infrastructure or Edible Food Recovery capacity and the District is under a corrective action plan with CalRecycle pursuant to 14 CCR Section 18996.2 due to those deficiencies.

h. Appeals Process

Persons receiving an administrative citation containing a penalty for an uncorrected violation may request a hearing to appeal the citation. A hearing will be held only if it is requested within the time prescribed and consistent with District's procedures in the District's codes for appeals of administrative citations. Evidence may be presented at the hearing. The District will appoint a hearing officer who shall conduct the hearing and issue a final written order.

i. Education Period for Non-Compliance

{00282927.100282927.2}

Beginning January 1, 2023 and through December 31, 2023, Jurisdiction will conduct Inspections, Route Reviews or waste evaluations, and Compliance Reviews, depending upon the type of regulated entity, to determine compliance, and if District determines that Organic Waste Generator, Self-Hauler, hauler, Tier One Commercial Edible Food Generator, Food Recovery Organization, Food Recovery Service, or other entity is not in compliance, it shall provide educational materials to the entity describing its obligations under this ordinance and a notice that compliance is required by January 1, 2023, and that violations may be subject to administrative civil penalties starting on January 1, 2024.

j. Civil Penalties for Non-Compliance

Beginning January 1, 2024, if the District determines that an Organic Waste Generator, Self-Hauler, hauler, Tier One or Tier Two Commercial Edible Food Generator, Food Recovery Organization, Food Recovery Service, or other entity is not in compliance with this ordinance, it shall document the noncompliance or violation, issue a Notice of Violation, and take Enforcement Action pursuant to Section 9.10, as needed.

{00282927.100282927.2} Page **| 34**

RANCHO MURIETA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

DISTRICT CODE CHAPTER 31

SOLID WASTE COLLECTION AND DISPOSAL



Amended _____, 2022 Ordinance O2022-01

TABLE OF CONTENTS

DISTRICT CODE

CHAPTER 31

SOLID WASTE COLLECTION AND DISPOSAL

<u>SECTION 1.00</u> <u>Findings — Purpose of Provisions</u>

The Board does find and determine that the storage, accumulation, collection and disposal of Solid Waste, and other discarded goods and material, is a service the District is authorized to provide, and is a matter of great public concern in that improper control of such matters can lead to air pollution, fire hazards, rat infestation, and other problems affecting the health, welfare and safety of the District. The Board declares that the regulations in Chapter 31 of this Code provided are designed to eliminate or alleviate such problems.

The Board further finds as follows:

- a. Reduction of the amount of Solid Waste and conservation of recyclable materials is an important public concern of the District by reason of the growing problem of Solid Waste disposal and its impact on our environment;
- b. Recycling conserves valuable material resources and energy, and promotes greater efficiency;
- c. Recycling will reduce the overall amount of Solid Waste presently generated, and thus reduce storage, collection, transportation and disposal costs for residents of the District.

SECTION 2.00 Definitions

Whenever in Chapter 31 of this Code, the following words or phrases are used; they shall have the meanings respectively ascribed to them in this section:

2.01 Bulky Waste or Large Items

Bulky Waste or Large Items shall mean materials including furniture, carpets, mattresses, clothing, tires, or some combination of such items in a container the dimensions and weight of which container does not exceed four feet by four feet by two feet (4'x4'x2') and sixty (60) pounds, which are attributed to the normal activities of a residential dwelling. Bulky Waste or Large Items must be generated by and at the physical location wherein the large items are collected. Bulky Waste shall not include Excluded Waste.

2.02 Board

Board shall mean the Board of the Rancho Murieta Community Services District.

2.03 Collection

Collection shall mean the operation of gathering together and transporting to the point of disposal of Solid Waste and other waste material.

2.04 Cart or Container

Cart or Container shall mean a receptacle constructed of metal, rubber, plastic or a combination thereof.

2.05 Contractor

Contractor shall mean the person entering into a contract with the District for the collection and disposal of Solid Waste.

2.06 County

County shall mean the County of Sacramento.

2.07 Department

Department shall mean the Sacramento County Department of Public Works acting by, through and under the authority of the Director of Public Works, unless the context indicates otherwise.

2.08 Disposal

Disposal shall mean the complete operation of treating and disposing of the accumulations of Solid Waste and the product or residue arising from such treatment.

2.09 District

District shall mean the Rancho Murieta Community Services District.

2.10 Excluded Waste

Excluded Waste shall mean biohazardous or biomedical waste; hazardous waste sludge; Manure or

Stable Matter; organic waste more than five (5) feet in length or with a diameter more than six (6) inches or a weight more than fifty (50) pounds; electronic equipment such as televisions, stereos, computers, monitors, VCR's and similar items; and refrigerators, ranges, water heaters, freezers and similar household appliances; boats and boat trailers; automobiles; automobile parts; internal combustion engines; lead-acid batteries; and those wastes under the control of the Nuclear Regulatory Commission.

2.11 Food Waste

Food Waste shall mean all putrescible waste, which generally includes but is not limited to kitchen and table food waste, animal, vegetative, food or any organic waste that is attendant with, or results from the storage, preparation, cooking or handling of food materials. Food Waste must be generated by and at the physical location wherein the Food Waste is collected.

2.12 Manure or Stable Matter

Manure or Stable Matter shall mean any waste matter normally accumulated in stables, or in livestock or poultry enclosures.

2.13 Organic Waste

Organic Waste shall mean Solid Waste containing material originated from living organisms and their metabolic waste products, including but not limited to Food Waste, green material, landscape and pruning waste, organic textiles and carpets, lumber, wood, Paper Products, Printing and Writing Paper, manure, biosolids, digestate, and sludges or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(46).

2.14 Recyclable Materials

Recyclable Materials shall mean those materials that are capable of being recycled and which would otherwise be processed or dispose of as Food Waste or Rubbish. Recyclable Materials include: newsprint (including inserts); mixed paper (including magazines, catalogs, envelopes, junk mail, corrugated cardboard, Kraft brown bags and paper, paperboard, paper egg cartons, office ledger paper, and telephone books); glass containers; aluminum beverage containers; small scrap and cast aluminum (not exceeding forty (40) pounds in weight nor two (2) feet in any dimension for any single item); steel, including "tin" cans and small scrap (not exceeding forty (40) pounds in weight nor two (2) feet in any dimension for any single item); bimetal containers; mixed plastics such as plastic bags, plastic film, plastic containers (1-7), and bottles including containers made of HDPE, LDPE, PET, or PVC; textiles; aseptic containers; and polystyrene.

2.15 Rubbish

Rubbish shall mean accumulation of refuse, paper, excelsior, rags, wooden boxes and containers, sweep-ups, and all other accumulations of a nature other than Food Waste, Organic Waste or Recyclable Materials. Rubbish must be generated by and at the physical location wherein the Rubbish is collected.

2.16 Solid Waste

Solid Waste shall mean Food Waste, Organic Waste, Large Items, Recyclable Materials, or Rubbish that is generated or accumulates in homes, hotels, restaurants, businesses, offices or government buildings. Solid Waste must be generated by and at the physical location wherein the Solid Waste is collected. Solid Waste shall not include Excluded Waste.

SECTION 3.00 Mandatory Service

3.01 Mandatory Service

Except as otherwise expressly provided by this Chapter, the owner, tenant, or occupant of every improved parcel (parcel with one or more residential buildings approved for occupancy) located within the District shall subscribe to Solid Waste Collection Service provided by the District.

3.02 Exceptions to Mandatory Service

A residential construction contractor, commercial gardener and those engaged in the business of cleaning residential properties and employees thereof, when collecting or transporting Solid Waste consisting of by-products of the services provided to a lawful disposal location.

SECTION 4.00 Exclusive Right of Collection

The District and its duly authorized agents, servants, and employees, or any Contractor with whom the District may at any time enter into a contract therefore, and the agents, servants, and employees of such contractor, while any such contract shall be in force, shall have the exclusive right to gather, collect and remove Solid Waste from all premises in the District; and no person other than those above specified shall gather, collect or remove any Solid Waste, or convey or transport any Solid Waste in, along or over any public streets, alley or highway in the District, or take any Solid Waste from any container in which the same may be placed for collection or removal, or interfere with or disturb any such container from any location where the same is placed by the owner thereof; provided, however, that nothing in this section contained shall be deemed to prohibit the occupant of any dwelling house from himself removing any Solid Waste accumulated on the premises occupied by him as a dwelling house and disposing of the same in a lawful manner, or to prohibit any person

from gathering, collecting or removing from the premises occupied by him any Solid Waste.

4.01 Collection by District – Applicable Provisions:

- a. The District may provide for the collection and disposal of Solid Waste from all premises in the District. When the District so acts, the following provisions shall be applicable. Such collection and disposal shall be accomplished at least once each calendar week. Such provisions may be made either by letting a contract for such collection and removal or otherwise. The District shall have charge and supervision of such collection and removal and shall prescribe and establish routes and days for the collection and removal of Solid Waste from the various parts of the District so as to conform to the provisions of this Chapter 31 of this Code and may change the same from time to time. When such routes or days of collection are established or changed, the District shall give notice thereof in such manner as the District deems best. Every person desiring to have the District collect and remove Solid Waste from any premises in the District shall place and keep the same in such containers as are required by this Chapter.
- b. When the collection of Solid Waste is desired, the containers shall be placed along the street curb in front of the premises from which the Solid Waste is to be removed or in such other location designated by the District. No person shall place any cart for or containing Solid Waste in any street or public highway of the District before 5:00 p.m. prior to the day of collection or allow any cart for Solid Waste placed by him or her in any such street or other collection location after 7:00 a.m. on the day following collection.
- c. When the collection of Bulky Waste is desired, residents may place Bulky Waste along the street curb in front of the premises from which the Bulky Waste is to be removed no earlier than 5:00 p.m. prior to the scheduled day of Bulky Waste collection.

4.02 Collection by Independent Contractor

If the Board has the collection and disposal of Solid Waste collected by an independent contractor or contractors, the contract shall be made under such terms and conditions as may be prescribed by resolution and set forth in such contract.

4.03 Collection Rates and Billings

a. Rates

The rates for collection of Solid Waste from premises in the District shall be those rates that the Board may determine and establish from time to time by ordinance. The Board may establish rates for residential collection without establishing rates for commercial or industrial collection.

1. Gray Cart Collection Services

38-gallon cart	\$ 23.42
64-gallon cart	\$ 27.82
96-gallon cart	\$ 44.97

2. Additional Gray Carts

38-gallon cart	\$ 9.72
64-gallon cart	\$ 12.61
96-gallon cart	\$ 27.69

3. Additional Recycling Cart (in excess of 1 recycled cart)

38-gallon cart	N/A
64-gallon cart	\$ 6.91
96-gallon cart	\$ 6.91

4. Additional Green Waste Cart (in excess of 2 green waste carts)

5.	Sacramento County Surcharge	\$ 2.00
	96-gallon cart	\$ 6.91
	64-gallon cart	\$ 6.91
	38-gallon cart	N/A

b. Collection of Charges for Collection Services

The rates and charges imposed by this Chapter may be collected together with charges for any other service provided by the District. If all or any part of the bill is not paid, the District may discontinue any or all of the services for which the bill is rendered in the manner herein provided.

c. Billing

All solid waste accounts shall be billed monthly.

d. Due Date

All bills are due and payable on the date they are issued by the District.

e. Delinquency

A bill for service is delinquent if not paid and received at the Rancho Murieta Community Services District office by the 25th day of the month following the month in which the bill was mailed.

f. Delinquency Penalty

- 1. A one-time basic penalty of ten percent (10%) of the delinquent service charges shall be added to each delinquent bill for the first month the bill is delinquent.
- 2. After levying the basic penalty provided in in the preceding subsection, the District shall thereafter levy an additional penalty of one percent (1%) per month to all delinquent charges and basic penalties remaining unpaid, until and unless the Board requests the County Auditor to include the amount of all delinquent rates, charges and penalties for collection on the County property tax roll as set forth in the succeeding subsection. Monies paid when any portion of an account is delinquent shall first be credited to interest and penalties, then to the delinquent portion of the bill, and then to the current portion of the bill.

g. Collection of Delinquent Charges on County Tax Roll

All rates, charges, penalties, and interest, which remain delinquent, may be collected on the County property tax roll in the same manner as property taxes in accordance with Government Code section 61115(b), provided that the District shall first have given the property owner notice and an opportunity to be heard as provided by law. After delinquent amounts have been turned over to the County Auditor for collection, no payment shall be received by the District on the delinquent amounts except as collected by the County Tax Collector. (Added by Ordinance 2019-03)

4.04 Collection Hours and Collection Days

Residential collection starts no earlier than 7:00 a.m. and terminates no later than 5:00 p.m. Residential collection may occur on Tuesdays, Wednesdays, or Thursdays.

4.05 Carts, Containers, and Lawn and Leaf Bags

No person shall dump any Solid Waste nor deposit the same in anything except a cart for holding Solid Waste. Each cart shall be as follows:

a. Gray Cart

A heavy plastic receptacle with a rated capacity of at least thirty-two (32) and not more than ninety-six (96) gallons, having a hinged tight-fitting lid and wheels, that is approved by the District and is labeled appropriately labeled as a garbage cart.

b. Organic Waste Cart

A heavy plastic receptacle with a rated capacity at least thirty-two (32) gallons and not exceeding ninety-six (96) gallons, having a hinged, tight fitting lid and wheels that are approved for such purpose by the District and is appropriately labeled as an organic waste cart. Organic Waste is further governed by Section 9 of this Code.

c. Recycling Cart

A heavy plastic receptacle with a rated capacity of at least thirty-two (32) gallons and not more than ninety-six (96) gallons, having a hinged tight-fitting lid, and wheels that is approved for such purpose by the District and is appropriately labeled as a recycling cart.

d. Used Oil Container

A plain copoly container provided by the District or its designee for the accumulation of used oil that is at least four (4) quarts in capacity, leak-proof, has a screw-on lid and has a label designating it for use as a used oil container.

e. Lawn and Leaf Bags

During the four (4) month period beginning October 1 and ending January 31 and annually thereafter during the term of this Contract, Service Recipients may place unlimited amounts of leaves at the curb alongside their Organic Waste Cart as part of Green Waste Collection Service. The leaves shall be placed in plastic lawn and leaf bags and closed in such a manner as to contain the leaves during Collection. Leaves must be generated by and at the Residential Service Unit wherein the leaves are collected. During this period, CONTRACTOR shall Collect and dispose of all leaves that are properly bagged and placed at the curb at no additional charge to the Service Recipient.

4.06 Solid Waste Burning

No person shall burn any Solid Waste within the District without having first complied with all rules and regulations of the District, the county, the air pollution control district and the state.

4.07 Depositing in Streets

No person shall throw, place, scatter or deposit any Solid Waste, Excluded Waste, or other waste of

any kind or composition in or upon any public street or highway in the District except as herein expressly authorized, nor throw, place, scatter or deposit any Solid Waste, Excluded Waste, or other waste of any kind or composition upon or below the surface of any premises in such a manner that the same is or may become a nuisance or endanger the public health.

SECTION 5.00 Recyclable Materials - Property Rights - Collection by Unauthorized Persons

5.01 Property Rights

From time of placement of Recyclable Materials at the curb or in recycling shelters for collection in accordance with the District's recycling program, such Recyclable Materials shall be and become the property of the District or its authorized agent. It shall be a violation of the ordinance codified in this section for any person unauthorized by the District to collect or pick up or cause to be collected or picked up any such items. Any and each such collection in violation hereof from one or more locations shall constitute a separate and distinct offense punishable as hereinafter provided.

5.02 Violation

Violation of any provision of this Chapter shall constitute a misdemeanor punishable in the manner prescribed by the laws of the State.

5.03 Recyclable Material—Owner's Rights

Nothing in Chapter 31 shall limit the right of any person to donate, sell, or otherwise dispose of his or her Recyclable Materials.

SECTION 6.00 Construction and Demolition Refuse

6.01 Storage

No Solid Waste from building construction or demolition may be stored on site and in the open. All Solid Waste from construction and demolition shall be placed and contained in commercial type debris containers. Solid Waste, which may be transported by the wind shall be placed in suitable Containers daily and removed as necessary. Adequate storage capacity shall be provided to prevent littering of surrounding areas.

6.02 Disposal

Solid Waste from construction and demolition shall not be disposed in residential garbage, recycle or yard waste containers.

SECTION 7.00 SECTION 7.00 Dumping Solid Waste

7.01 On Public Property

No person shall dispose of or dump upon any public or commonly owned property or street of the District or upon any property of another, except such property as may be provided and set apart for such use by the District, Solid Waste, Excluded Waste, or other waste of any kind or composition. The Board may enter into a contract for the collection and disposal of the Solid Waste, and may provide such rules for the regulation thereof as it may from time to time deem best and necessary.

7.02 On Private Property

No person shall dispose of or dump upon any private property within the District any Solid Waste, Excluded Waste or other waste of any kind or composition.

SECTION 8.00 Residential Solid Waste Collection Vehicles

No person authorized to engage in residential Solid Waste collection service shall operate any truck-mounted Solid Waste loading and/or compacting equipment or similar device in any manner so as to create any noise exceeding seventy-five (75) dBA, measured at a distance of twenty-five (25) feet measured at an elevation of five (5) feet above ground level using the "A" scale of the standard sound level meter at slow response from the equipment in an open. If requested by the District, residential collection vehicles are to be tested annually during the months of March and April, beginning March of 2006, and certificates of testing showing that the vehicles met the requirements of this section.

SECTION 9.00 Mandatory Organic Waste Disposal Reduction

9.01 Purpose and Findings

The District finds and declares:

- a. State recycling law, Assembly Bill 939 of 1989, the California Integrated Waste Management Act of 1989 (California Public Resources Code Section 40000, et seq., as amended, supplemented, superseded, and replaced from time to time), requires cities and counties to reduce, reuse, and recycle (including composting) Solid Waste generated in their jurisdictions to the maximum extent feasible before any incineration or landfill disposal of waste, to conserve water, energy, and other natural resources, and to protect the environment.
- b. State recycling law, Assembly Bill 341 of 2011 (approved by the Governor of the State of California on October 5, 2011, which amended Sections 41730, 41731, 41734, 41735, 41736, 41800, 42926, 44004, and 50001 of, and added Sections 40004, 41734.5, and 41780.01 and Chapter 12.8

(commencing with Section 42649) to Part 3 of Division 30 of, and added and repealed Section 41780.02 of, the Public Resources Code, as amended, supplemented, superseded and replaced from time to time), places requirements on businesses and Multi-Family property owners that generate a specified threshold amount of Solid Waste to arrange for recycling services and requires jurisdictions to implement a Mandatory Commercial Recycling program.

- c. State organics recycling law, Assembly Bill 1826 of 2014 (approved by the Governor of the State of California on September 28, 2014, which added Chapter 12.9 (commencing with Section 42649.8) to Part 3 of Division 30 of the Public Resources Code, relating to Solid Waste, as amended, supplemented, superseded, and replaced from time to time), requires businesses and Multi-Family property owners that generate a specified threshold amount of Solid Waste, Recycling, and Organic Waste per week to arrange for recycling services for that waste, requires jurisdictions to implement a recycling program to divert Organic Waste from businesses subject to the law, and requires jurisdictions to implement a Mandatory Commercial Organics Recycling program.
- d. SB 1383, the Short-lived Climate Pollutant Reduction Act of 2016, requires CalRecycle to develop regulations to reduce organics in landfills as a source of methane. The regulations place requirements on multiple entities including jurisdictions, residential households, Commercial Businesses and business owners, Commercial Edible Food Generators, haulers, Self-Haulers, Food Recovery Organizations, and Food Recovery Services to support achievement of Statewide Organic Waste disposal reduction targets.
- e. SB 1383, the Short-lived Climate Pollutant Reduction Act of 2016, requires jurisdictions to adopt and enforce an ordinance or enforceable mechanism to implement relevant provisions of SB 1383 Regulations. This ordinance will also help reduce food insecurity by requiring Commercial Edible Food Generators to arrange to have the maximum amount of their Edible Food, that would otherwise be disposed, be recovered for human consumption.

9.02 Definitions

In addition to those definitions provided in Section 1 of this Code, whenever in Section 9 of this Code, the following words or phrases are used; they shall have the meanings respectively ascribed to them in this section:

- a. "Blue Container" has the same meaning as in 14 CCR Section 18982.2(a)(5) and shall be used for the purpose of storage and collection of Source Separated Recyclable Materials or Source Separated Blue Container Organic Waste.
- b. "CalRecycle" means California's Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery, which is the Department designated with responsibility for developing, implementing, and enforcing SB 1383 Regulations on jurisdictions (and others).

- c. "California Code of Regulations" or "CCR" means the State of California Code of Regulations. CCR references in this ordinance are preceded with a number that refers to the relevant Title of the CCR (e.g., "14 CCR" refers to Title 14 of CCR).
- d. "Commercial Business" or "Commercial" means a firm, partnership, proprietorship, joint-stock company, corporation, or association, whether for-profit or nonprofit, strip mall, industrial facility, or a multifamily residential dwelling, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(6). A Multi-Family Residential Dwelling that consists of fewer than five (5) units is not a Commercial Business for purposes of implementing this ordinance.
- e. "Commercial Edible Food Generator" includes a Tier One or a Tier Two Commercial Edible Food Generator as defined in Section 9.02 of this Code or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(73) and (a)(74). For the purposes of this definition, Food Recovery Organizations and Food Recovery Services are not Commercial Edible Food Generators pursuant to 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(7).
- f. "Compliance Review" means a review of records by the District to determine compliance with this ordinance.
- g. "Community Composting" means any activity that composts green material, agricultural material, food material, and vegetative food material, alone or in combination, and the total amount of feedstock and Compost on-site at any one time does not exceed 100 cubic yards and 750 square feet, as specified in 14 CCR Section 17855(a)(4); or, as otherwise defined by 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(8).
- h. "Compost" has the same meaning as in 14 CCR Section 17896.2(a)(4), which stated, as of the effective date of this ordinance, that "Compost" means the product resulting from the controlled biological decomposition of organic Solid Wastes that are Source Separated from the municipal Solid Waste stream, or which are separated at a centralized facility.
- i. "Compostable Plastics" or "Compostable Plastic" means plastic materials that meet the ASTM D6400 standard for compostability, or as otherwise described in 14 CCR Section 18984.1(a)(1)(A) or 18984.2(a)(1)(C).
- j. "Container Contamination" or "Contaminated Container" means a container, regardless of color, that contains Prohibited Container Contaminants, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(55).
- k. "C&D" means construction and demolition debris.
- I. "Designee" means an entity that the District contracts with or otherwise arranges to carry out any

of the District's responsibilities of this ordinance as authorized in 14 CCR Section 18981.2. A Designee may be a government entity, a hauler, a private entity, or a combination of those entities.

- m. "District Enforcement Official" means the District General Manager or authorized Designee(s) who is/are partially or whole responsible for enforcing the ordinance.
- n. "Edible Food" means food intended for human consumption, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(18). For the purposes of this ordinance or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(18), "Edible Food" is not Solid Waste if it is recovered and not discarded. Nothing in this ordinance or in 14 CCR, Division 7, Chapter 12 requires or authorizes the Recovery of Edible Food that does not meet the food safety requirements of the California Retail Food Code.
- o. "Enforcement Action" means an action of the District to address non-compliance with this ordinance including, but not limited to, issuing administrative citations, fines, penalties, or using other remedies.
- p. "Excluded Waste" means hazardous substance, hazardous waste, infectious waste, designated waste, volatile, corrosive, medical waste, infectious, regulated radioactive waste, and toxic substances or material that facility operator(s), which receive materials from the District and its generators, reasonably believe(s) would, as a result of or upon acceptance, transfer, processing, or disposal, be a violation of local, State, or Federal law, regulation, or ordinance, including: land use restrictions or conditions, waste that cannot be disposed of in Class III landfills or accepted at the facility by permit conditions, waste that in District's, or its Designee's reasonable opinion would present a significant risk to human health or the environment, cause a nuisance or otherwise create or expose District, or its Designee, to potential liability; but not including de minimis volumes or concentrations of waste of a type and amount normally found in Single-Family or Multi-Family Solid Waste after implementation of programs for the safe collection, processing, recycling, treatment, and disposal of household batteries and motor oil and filters in compliance with Sections 41500 and 41802 of the California Public Resources Code.
- q. "Food Distributor" means a company that distributes food to entities including, but not limited to, Supermarkets and Grocery Stores, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(22).
- r. "Food Facility" has the same meaning as in Section 113789 of the Health and Safety Code.
- s. "Food Recovery" means actions to collect and distribute food for human consumption that otherwise would be disposed, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(24).
- t. "Food Recovery Organization" means an entity that engages in the collection or receipt of Edible

Food from Commercial Edible Food Generators and distributes that Edible Food to the public for Food Recovery either directly or through other entities or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(25), including, but not limited to:

- 1. A food bank as defined in Section 113783 of the Health and Safety Code;
- 2. A nonprofit charitable organization as defined in Section 113841 of the Health and Safety code; and,
- 3. A nonprofit charitable temporary food facility as defined in Section 113842 of the Health and Safety Code.

A Food Recovery Organization is not a Commercial Edible Food Generator for the purposes of this ordinance and implementation of 14 CCR, Division 7, Chapter 12 pursuant to 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(7). If the definition in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(25) for Food Recovery Organization differs from this definition, the definition in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(25) shall apply to this ordinance.

- u. "Food Recovery Service" means a person or entity that collects and transports Edible Food from a Commercial Edible Food Generator to a Food Recovery Organization or other entities for Food Recovery, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(26). A Food Recovery Service is not a Commercial Edible Food Generator for the purposes of this ordinance and implementation of 14 CCR, Division 7, Chapter 12 pursuant to 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(7).
- v. "Food Scraps" means all food such as, but not limited to, fruits, vegetables, meat, poultry, seafood, shellfish, bones, rice, beans, pasta, bread, cheese, and eggshells. Food Scraps excludes fats, oils, and grease when such materials are Source Separated from other Food Scraps.
- w. "Food Service Provider" means an entity primarily engaged in providing food services to institutional, governmental, Commercial, or industrial locations of others based on contractual arrangements with these types of organizations, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(27).
- x. "Food-Soiled Paper" is compostable paper material that has come in contact with food or liquid, such as, but not limited to, compostable paper plates, paper coffee cups, napkins, pizza boxes, and milk cartons.
- y. "Food Waste" means Food Scraps, Food-Soiled Paper, and Compostable Plastics.
- z. "Gray Container" has the same meaning as in 14 CCR Section 18982.2(a)(28) and shall be used for the purpose of storage and collection of Gray Container Waste.

- aa. "Gray Container Waste" means Solid Waste that is collected in a Gray Container that is part of a three-container Organic Waste collection service that prohibits the placement of Organic Waste in the Gray Container as specified in 14 CCR Sections 18984.1(a) and (b), or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 17402(a)(6.5).
- bb. "Green Container" has the same meaning as in 14 CCR Section 18982.2(a)(29) and shall be used for the purpose of storage and collection of Source Separated Green Container Organic Waste.
- cc. "Grocery Store" means a store primarily engaged in the retail sale of canned food; dry goods; fresh fruits and vegetables; fresh meats, fish, and poultry; and any area that is not separately owned within the store where the food is prepared and served, including a bakery, deli, and meat and seafood departments, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(30).
- dd. "Hauler Route" means the designated itinerary or sequence of stops for each segment of the District's collection service area, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(31.5).
- ee. "High Diversion Organic Waste Processing Facility" means a facility that is in compliance with the reporting requirements of 14 CCR Section 18815.5(d) and meets or exceeds an annual average Mixed Waste organic content Recovery rate of 50 percent between January 1, 2022 and December 31, 2024, and 75 percent after January 1, 2025, as calculated pursuant to 14 CCR Section 18815.5(e) for Organic Waste received from the "Mixed waste organic collection stream" as defined in 14 CCR Section 17402(a)(11.5); or, as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(33).
- ff. "Inspection" means a site visit where the District reviews records, containers, and an entity's collection, handling, recycling, or landfill disposal of Organic Waste or Edible Food handling to determine if the entity is complying with requirements set forth in this ordinance, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(35).
- gg. "Large Event" means an event, including, but not limited to, a sporting event or a flea market, that charges an admission price, or is operated by a local agency, and serves an average of more than 2,000 individuals per day of operation of the event, at a location that includes, but is not limited to, a public, nonprofit, or privately owned park, parking lot, golf course, street system, or other open space when being used for an event. If the definition in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(38) differs from this definition, the definition in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(38) shall apply to this ordinance.
- hh. "Large Venue" means a permanent venue facility that annually seats or serves an average of more than 2,000 individuals within the grounds of the facility per day of operation of the venue facility. For purposes of this ordinance and implementation of 14 CCR, Division 7, Chapter 12, a venue facility includes, but is not limited to, a public, nonprofit, or privately owned or operated stadium,

amphitheater, arena, hall, amusement park, conference or civic center, zoo, aquarium, airport, racetrack, horse track, performing arts center, fairground, museum, theater, or other public attraction facility. For purposes of this ordinance and implementation of 14 CCR, Division 7, Chapter 12, a site under common ownership or control that includes more than one Large Venue that is contiguous with other Large Venues in the site, is a single Large Venue. If the definition in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(39) differs from this definition, the definition in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(39) shall apply to this ordinance.

- ii. "Local Education Agency" means a school district, charter school, or county office of education that is not subject to the control of city or county regulations related to Solid Waste, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(40).
- jj. "Multi-Family Residential Dwelling" or "Multi-Family" means of, from, or pertaining to residential premises with five (5) or more dwelling units. Multi-Family premises do not include hotels, motels, or other transient occupancy facilities, which are considered Commercial Businesses.
- kk. "Non-Compostable Paper" includes but is not limited to paper that is coated in a plastic material that will not breakdown in the composting process, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(41).
- II. "Non-Organic Recyclables" means non-putrescible and non-hazardous recyclable wastes including but not limited to bottles, cans, metals, plastics and glass, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(43).
- mm. "Notice of Violation (NOV)" means a notice that a violation has occurred that includes a compliance date to avoid an action to seek penalties, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(45) or further explained in 14 CCR Section 18995.4.
- nn. "Organic Waste Generator" means a person or entity that is responsible for the initial creation of Organic Waste, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(48).
- oo. "Paper Products" include, but are not limited to, paper janitorial supplies, cartons, wrapping, packaging, file folders, hanging files, corrugated boxes, tissue, and toweling, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(51).
- pp. "Printing and Writing Papers" include, but are not limited to, copy, xerographic, watermark, cotton fiber, offset, forms, computer printout paper, white wove envelopes, manila envelopes, book paper, note pads, writing tablets, newsprint, and other uncoated writing papers, posters, index cards, calendars, brochures, reports, magazines, and publications, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(54).

- qq. "Prohibited Container Contaminants" means the following: (i) discarded materials placed in the Blue Container that are not identified as acceptable Source Separated Recyclable Materials for the District's Blue Container; (ii) discarded materials placed in the Green Container that are not identified as acceptable Source Separated Green Container Organic Waste for the District's Green Container; (iii) discarded materials placed in the Gray Container that are acceptable Source Separated Recyclable Materials and/or Source Separated Green Container Organic Wastes to be placed in District's Green Container and/or Blue Container; and, (iv) Excluded Waste placed in any container.
- rr. "Recovered Organic Waste Products" means products made from California, landfill-diverted recovered Organic Waste processed in a permitted or otherwise authorized facility, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(60).
- ss. "Recovery" means any activity or process described in 14 CCR Section 18983.1(b), or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(49).
- tt. "Recycled-Content Paper" means Paper Products and Printing and Writing Paper that consists of at least 30 percent, by fiber weight, postconsumer fiber, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(61).
- uu. "Renewable Gas" means gas derived from Organic Waste that has been diverted from a California landfill and processed at an in-vessel digestion facility that is permitted or otherwise authorized by 14 CCR to recycle Organic Waste, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(62).
- vv. "Restaurant" means an establishment primarily engaged in the retail sale of food and drinks for on-premises or immediate consumption, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(64).
- ww. "Route Review" means a visual Inspection of containers along a Hauler Route for the purpose of determining Container Contamination, and may include mechanical Inspection methods such as the use of cameras, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(65).
- xx. "SB 1383" means Senate Bill 1383 of 2016 approved by the Governor on September 19, 2016, which added Sections 39730.5, 39730.6, 39730.7, and 39730.8 to the Health and Safety Code, and added Chapter 13.1 (commencing with Section 42652) to Part 3 of Division 30 of the Public Resources Code, establishing methane emissions reduction targets in a Statewide effort to reduce emissions of short-lived climate pollutants as amended, supplemented, superseded, and replaced from time to time.
- yy. "SB 1383 Regulations" or "SB 1383 Regulatory" means or refers to, for the purposes of this ordinance, the Short-Lived Climate Pollutants: Organic Waste Reduction regulations developed by CalRecycle and adopted in 2020 that created 14 CCR, Division 7, Chapter 12 and amended

portions of regulations of 14 CCR and 27 CCR.

- zz. "Self-Hauler" means a person, who hauls Solid Waste, Organic Waste or recyclable material he or she has generated to another person. Self-hauler also includes a person who back-hauls waste, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(66). Back-haul means generating and transporting Organic Waste to a destination owned and operated by the generator using the generator's own employees and equipment, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(66)(A).
- aaa. "Single-Family" means of, from, or pertaining to any residential premises with fewer than five (5) units.
- bbb. "Solid Waste" has the same meaning as defined in State Public Resources Code Section 40191, which defines Solid Waste as all putrescible and nonputrescible solid, semisolid, and liquid wastes, including garbage, trash, refuse, paper, rubbish, ashes, industrial wastes, demolition and construction wastes, abandoned vehicles and parts thereof, discarded home and industrial appliances, dewatered, treated, or chemically fixed sewage sludge which is not hazardous waste, manure, vegetable or animal solid and semi-solid wastes, and other discarded solid and semisolid wastes, with the exception that Solid Waste does not include any of the following wastes:
 - 1. Hazardous waste, as defined in the State Public Resources Code Section 40141.
 - 2. Radioactive waste regulated pursuant to the State Radiation Control Law (Chapter 8 (commencing with Section 114960) of Part 9 of Division 104 of the State Health and Safety Code).
 - 3. Medical waste regulated pursuant to the State Medical Waste Management Act (Part 14 (commencing with Section 117600) of Division 104 of the State Health and Safety Code). Untreated medical waste shall not be disposed of in a Solid Waste landfill, as defined in State Public Resources Code Section 40195.1. Medical waste that has been treated and deemed to be Solid Waste shall be regulated pursuant to Division 30 of the State Public Resources Code.
- ccc. "Source Separated" means materials, including commingled recyclable materials, that have been separated or kept separate from the Solid Waste stream, at the point of generation, for the purpose of additional sorting or processing those materials for recycling or reuse in order to return them to the economic mainstream in the form of raw material for new, reused, or reconstituted products, which meet the quality standards necessary to be used in the marketplace, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 17402.5(b)(4). For the purposes of the ordinance, Source Separated shall include separation of materials by the generator, property owner, property owner's employee, property manager, or property manager's employee into different containers for the purpose of collection such that Source Separated materials are

separated from Gray Container Waste or other Solid Waste for the purposes of collection and processing.

- ddd. "Source Separated Green Container Organic Waste" means Source Separated Organic Waste that can be placed in a Green Container that is specifically intended for the separate collection of Organic Waste by the generator, excluding Source Separated Blue Container Organic Waste, carpets, Non-Compostable Paper, and textiles.
- eee. "Source Separated Recyclable Materials" means Source Separated Non-Organic Recyclables and Source Separated Blue Container Organic Waste.
- fff. "State" means the State of California.
- ggg. "Supermarket" means a full-line, self-service retail store with gross annual sales of two million dollars (\$2,000,000), or more, and which sells a line of dry grocery, canned goods, or nonfood items and some perishable items, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(71).
- hhh. "Tier One Commercial Edible Food Generator" means a Commercial Edible Food Generator that is one of the following:
 - 1. Supermarket.
 - 2. Grocery Store with a total facility size equal to or greater than 10,000 square feet.
 - Food Service Provider.
 - 4. Food Distributor.
 - 5. Wholesale Food Vendor.

If the definition in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(73) of Tier One Commercial Edible Food Generator differs from this definition, the definition in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(73) shall apply to this ordinance.

- iii. "Tier Two Commercial Edible Food Generator" means a Commercial Edible Food Generator that is one of the following:
 - 1. Restaurant with 250 or more seats, or a total facility size equal to or greater than 5,000 square feet.
 - 2. Hotel with an on-site Food Facility and 200 or more rooms.
 - 3. Health facility with an on-site Food Facility and 100 or more beds.

- 4. Large Venue.
- 5. Large Event.
- 6. A State agency with a cafeteria with 250 or more seats or total cafeteria facility size equal to or greater than 5,000 square feet.
- 7. A Local Education Agency facility with an on-site Food Facility.

If the definition in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(74) of Tier Two Commercial Edible Food Generator differs from this definition, the definition in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(74) shall apply to this ordinance.

jjj. "Wholesale Food Vendor" means a business or establishment engaged in the merchant wholesale distribution of food, where food (including fruits and vegetables) is received, shipped, stored, prepared for distribution to a retailer, warehouse, distributor, or other destination, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 189852(a)(76).

9.03 Requirements for Single-Family Generators

Single-Family Organic Waste Generators shall comply with the following requirements:

- a. Shall subscribe to District's Organic Waste collection services for all Organic Waste generated as described below in Section 9.03. District shall have the right to review the number and size of a generator's containers to evaluate adequacy of capacity provided for each type of collection service for proper separation of materials and containment of materials; and, Single-Family generators shall adjust its service level for its collection services as requested by the District.
- b. Shall participate in the District's Organic Waste collection service(s) by placing designated materials in designated containers as described below, and shall not place Prohibited Container Contaminants in collection containers. Generator shall place Source Separated Green Container Organic Waste, including Food Waste, in the Green Container; Source Separated Recyclable Materials in the Blue Container; and Gray Container Waste in the Gray Container. Generators shall not place materials designated for the Gray Container into the Green Container or Blue Container.

9.04 Requirements for Commercial Businesses

Generators that are Commercial Businesses, including Multi-Family Residential Dwellings, shall:

a. Subscribe to District's three container collection services and comply with requirements of those

services as described below in Section 9.04, except Commercial Businesses that meet the Self-Hauler requirements in Section 9.07 of this Code. District shall have the right to review the number and size of a generator's containers and frequency of collection to evaluate adequacy of capacity provided for each type of collection service for proper separation of materials and containment of materials; and, Commercial Businesses shall adjust their service level for their collection services as requested by the District.

- b. Except Commercial Businesses that meet the Self-Hauler requirements in Section 9.07 of this Code, participate in the District's Organic Waste collection service(s) by placing designated materials in designated containers as described below. Generator shall place Source Separated Green Container Organic Waste, including Food Waste, in the Green Container; Source Separated Recyclable Materials in the Blue Container; and Gray Container Waste in the Gray Container. Generator shall not place materials designated for the Gray Container into the Green Container or Blue Container.
- c. Supply and allow access to adequate number, size and location of collection containers with sufficient labels or colors conforming with this section for employees, contractors, tenants, and customers, consistent with District's Blue Container, Green Container, and Gray Container collection service or, if self-hauling, per the Commercial Businesses' instructions to support its compliance with its self-haul program, in accordance with Section 9.07.
- d. Excluding Multi-Family Residential Dwellings, provide containers for the collection of Source Separated Green Container Organic Waste and Source Separated Recyclable Materials in all indoor and outdoor areas where disposal Such containers do not need to be provided in restrooms. If a Commercial Business does not generate any of the materials that would be collected in one type of container, then the business does not have to provide that particular container in all areas where disposal containers are provided for customers. Pursuant to 14 CCR Section 18984.9(b), the containers provided by the business shall have either:
 - 1. A body or lid that conforms with the container colors provided through the collection service provided by District, with either lids conforming to the color requirements or bodies conforming to the color requirements or both lids and bodies conforming to color requirements. A Commercial Business is not required to replace functional containers, including containers purchased prior to January 1, 2022, that do not comply with the requirements of the subsection prior to the end of the useful life of those containers, or prior to January 1, 2036, whichever comes first.
 - 2. Container labels that include language or graphic images, or both, indicating the primary material accepted and the primary materials prohibited in that container, or containers with imprinted text or graphic images that indicate the primary materials accepted and primary

materials prohibited in the container. Pursuant 14 CCR Section 18984.8, the container labeling requirements are required on new containers commencing January 1, 2022.

- e. Multi-Family Residential Dwellings are not required to comply with container placement requirements or labeling requirement in Section 9.04 pursuant to 14 CCR Section 18984.9(b).
- f. To the extent practical through education, training, Inspection, and/or other measures, excluding Multi-Family Residential Dwellings, prohibit employees from placing materials in a container not designated for those materials per the District's Blue Container, Green Container, and Gray Container collection service or, if self-hauling, per the Commercial Businesses' instructions to support its compliance with its self-haul program, in accordance with Section 9.07.
- g. Excluding Multi-Family Residential Dwellings, periodically inspect Blue Containers, Green Containers, and Gray Containers for contamination and inform employees if containers are contaminated and of the requirements to keep contaminants out of those containers pursuant to 14 CCR Section 18984.9(b)(3).
- h. Annually provide information to employees, contractors, tenants, and customers about Organic Waste Recovery requirements and about proper sorting of Source Separated Green Container Organic Waste and Source Separated Recyclable Materials.
- i. Provide education information before or within fourteen (14) days of occupation of the premises to new tenants that describes requirements to keep Source Separated Green Container Organic Waste and Source Separated Recyclable Materials separate from Gray Container Waste (when applicable) and the location of containers and the rules governing their use at each property.
- j. Provide or arrange access for District or its agent to their properties during all Inspections conducted in accordance with Section 9.09 of this Code to confirm compliance with the requirements of this ordinance.
- k. If a Commercial Business wants to self haul, meet the Self-Hauler requirements in Section 9.07 of this Code.
- I. Nothing in this Section prohibits a generator from preventing or reducing waste generation, managing Organic Waste on site, or using a Community Composting site pursuant to 14 CCR Section 18984.9(c).
- m. Commercial Businesses that are Tier One or Tier Two Commercial Edible Food Generators shall comply with Food Recovery requirements, pursuant to Section 9.06.

9.05 Waivers for Generators

- a. De Minimis Waivers. District may waive a Commercial Business' obligation (including Multi-Family Residential Dwellings) to comply with some or all of the Organic Waste requirements of this ordinance if the Commercial Business provides documentation that the business generates below a certain amount of Organic Waste material as described in subsection (a)(2) below. Commercial Businesses requesting a de minimis waiver shall:
 - 1. Submit an application specifying the services that they are requesting a waiver from and provide documentation as noted in subsection (a)(2) below.
 - 2. Provide documentation that either:
 - (a) The Commercial Business' total Solid Waste collection service is two cubic yards or more per week and Organic Waste subject to collection in a Blue Container or Green Container comprises less than 20 gallons per week per applicable container of the business' total waste; or,
 - (b) The Commercial Business' total Solid Waste collection service is less than two cubic yards per week and Organic Waste subject to collection in a Blue Container or Green Container comprises less than 10 gallons per week per applicable container of the business' total waste.
 - 3. Notify the District if circumstances change such that Commercial Business's Organic Waste exceeds threshold required for waiver, in which case waiver will be rescinded.
 - 4. Provide written verification of eligibility for de minimis waiver every 5 years, if District has approved de minimis waiver.
- b. Physical Space Waivers. District may waive a Commercial Business' or property owner's obligations (including Multi-Family Residential Dwellings) to comply with some or all of the recyclable materials and/or Organic Waste collection service requirements if the District has evidence from its own staff, a hauler, licensed architect, or licensed engineer demonstrating that the premises lacks adequate space for the collection containers required for compliance with the Organic Waste collection requirements of Section 9.04.

Commercial Business or property owner may request a physical space waiver through the following process:

1. Submit an application form specifying the type(s) of collection services for which they are requesting a compliance waiver.

- 2. Provide documentation that the premises lacks adequate space for Blue Containers and/or Green Containers including documentation from its hauler, licensed architect, or licensed engineer.
- 3. Provide written verification to District that it is still eligible for physical space waiver every five years, if District has approved application for a physical space waiver.
- c. Collection Frequency Waiver. District, at its discretion and in accordance with 14 CCR Section 18984.11(a)(3), may allow the owner or tenant of any residence, premises, business establishment or industry that subscribes to the District's three-container Organic Waste collection service to arrange for the collection of their Blue Container, Gray Container, or both once every fourteen days, rather than once per week.

9.06 Requirements for Commercial Edible Food Generators

- a. Tier One Commercial Edible Food Generators must comply with the requirements of this Section 9 commencing January 1, 2023, and Tier Two Commercial Edible Food Generators must comply commencing January 1, 2024, pursuant to 14 CCR Section 18991.3.
- b. Large Venue or Large Event operators not providing food services, but allowing for food to be provided by others, shall require Food Facilities operating at the Large Venue or Large Event to comply with the requirements of this Section, commencing January 1, 2024.
- c. Commercial Edible Food Generators shall comply with the following requirements:
 - 1. Arrange to recover the maximum amount of Edible Food that would otherwise be disposed.
 - 2. Contract with, or enter into a written agreement with Food Recovery Organizations or Food Recovery Services for: (i) the collection of Edible Food for Food Recovery; or, (ii) acceptance of the Edible Food that the Commercial Edible Food Generator self-hauls to the Food Recovery Organization for Food Recovery.
 - 3. Shall not intentionally spoil Edible Food that is capable of being recovered by a Food Recovery Organization or a Food Recovery Service.
 - 4. Allow District's designated enforcement entity or designated third party enforcement entity to access the premises and review records pursuant to 14 CCR Section 18991.4.
 - 5. Keep records that include the following information, or as otherwise specified in 14 CCR Section 18991.4:

- (a) A list of each Food Recovery Service or organization that collects or receives its Edible Food pursuant to a contract or written agreement established under 14 CCR Section 18991.3(b).
- (b) A copy of all contracts or written agreements established under 14 CCR Section 18991.3(b).
- (c) A record of the following information for each of those Food Recovery Services or Food Recovery Organizations:
 - (i) The name, address and contact information of the Food Recovery Service or Food Recovery Organization.
 - (ii) The types of food that will be collected by or self-hauled to the Food Recovery Service or Food Recovery Organization.
 - (iii) The established frequency that food will be collected or self-hauled.
 - (iv) The quantity of food, measured in pounds recovered per month, collected or self-hauled to a Food Recovery Service or Food Recovery Organization for Food Recovery.
- d. Nothing in this ordinance shall be construed to limit or conflict with the protections provided by the California Good Samaritan Food Donation Act of 2017, the Federal Good Samaritan Act, or share table and school food donation guidance pursuant to Senate Bill 557 of 2017 (approved by the Governor of the State of California on September 25, 2017, which added Article 13 [commencing with Section 49580] to Chapter 9 of Part 27 of Division 4 of Title 2 of the Education Code, and to amend Section 114079 of the Health and Safety Code, relating to food safety, as amended, supplemented, superseded and replaced from time to time).

9.07 Requirements for Haulers

- a. Exclusive franchise haulers providing residential, Commercial, or industrial Organic Waste collection services to generators within the District's boundaries shall meet the following requirements and standards as a condition of approval of a contract, agreement, or other authorization with the District to collect Organic Waste:
 - 1. Through written notice to the District annually on or before January 1, identify the facilities to which they will transport Organic Waste including facilities for Source Separated Recyclable Materials and Source Separated Green Container Organic Waste.

- 2. Transport Source Separated Recyclable Materials and Source Separated Green Container Organic Waste to a facility, operation, activity, or property that recovers Organic Waste as defined in 14 CCR, Division 7, Chapter 12, Article 2.
- 3. Obtain approval from the District to haul Organic Waste, unless it is transporting Source Separated Organic Waste to a Community Composting site or lawfully transporting C&D in a manner that complies with 14 CCR Section 18989.1, and District's C&D ordinance.
- b. Exclusive franchise haulers authorized to collect Organic Waste shall comply with education, equipment, signage, container labeling, container color, contamination monitoring, reporting, and other requirements contained within its franchise agreement entered into with District.

9.08 Self-Hauler Requirements

- a. Self-Haulers shall source separate all recyclable materials and Organic Waste (materials that District otherwise requires generators to separate for collection in the District's organics and recycling collection program) generated on-site from Solid Waste in a manner consistent with 14 CCR Sections 18984.1 and 18984.2, or shall haul Organic Waste to a High Diversion Organic Waste Processing Facility as specified in 14 CCR Section 18984.3.
- b. Self-Haulers shall haul their Source Separated Recyclable Materials to a facility that recovers those materials; and haul their Source Separated Green Container Organic Waste to a Solid Waste facility, operation, activity, or property that processes or recovers Source Separated Organic Waste. Alternatively, Self-Haulers may haul Organic Waste to a High Diversion Organic Waste Processing Facility.
- c. Self-Haulers that are Commercial Businesses (including Multi-Family Residential Dwellings) shall keep a record of the amount of Organic Waste delivered to each Solid Waste facility, operation, activity, or property that processes or recovers Organic Waste; this record shall be subject to Inspection by the District. The records shall include the following information:
 - 1. Delivery receipts and weight tickets from the entity accepting the waste.
 - 2. The amount of material in cubic yards or tons transported by the generator to each entity.
 - 3. If the material is transported to an entity that does not have scales on-site, or employs scales incapable of weighing the Self-Hauler's vehicle in a manner that allows it to determine the weight of materials received, the Self-Hauler is not required to record the weight of material but shall keep a record of the entities that received the Organic Waste.
- d. A residential Organic Waste Generator that self hauls Organic Waste is not required to record or

report information in subsections (c) and (d).

9.09 Inspections and Investigations by District

- a. District representatives and/or its designated entity, including Designees are authorized to conduct Inspections and investigations, at random or otherwise, of any collection container, collection vehicle loads, or transfer, processing, or disposal facility for materials collected from generators, or Source Separated materials to confirm compliance with this ordinance by Organic Waste Generators, Commercial Businesses (including Multi-Family Residential Dwellings), property owners, Commercial Edible Food Generators, haulers, Self-Haulers, Food Recovery Services, and Food Recovery Organizations, subject to applicable laws. This Section does not allow District to enter the interior of a private residential property for Inspection.
- b. Regulated entity shall provide or arrange for access during all Inspections (with the exception of residential property interiors) and shall cooperate with the District's employee or its designated entity/Designee during such Inspections and investigations. Such Inspections and investigations may include confirmation of proper placement of materials in containers, Edible Food Recovery activities, records, or any other requirement of this ordinance described herein. Failure to provide or arrange for: (i) access to an entity's premises; or (ii) access to records for any Inspection or investigation is a violation of this ordinance and may result in penalties described.
- c. Any records obtained by the District during its Inspections and other reviews shall be subject to the requirements and applicable disclosure exemptions of the Public Records Act as set forth in Government Code Section 6250 et seq.
- d. District representatives, its designated entity, and/or Designee are authorized to conduct any Inspections, or other investigations as reasonably necessary to further the goals of this ordinance, subject to applicable laws.
- e. District shall receive written complaints from persons regarding an entity that may be potentially non-compliant with SB 1383 Regulations, including receipt of anonymous complaints.

9.10 Enforcement

a. Violation of any provision of this ordinance shall constitute grounds for issuance of a Notice of Violation and assessment of a fine by the District Enforcement Official or representative. Enforcement Actions under this ordinance are issuance of an administrative citation and assessment of a fine. The District's procedures on imposition of administrative fines are hereby incorporated in their entirety, as modified from time to time, and shall govern the imposition, enforcement, collection, and review of administrative citations issued to enforce this ordinance and any rule or regulation adopted pursuant to this ordinance, except as otherwise indicated in

this ordinance.

- b. Other remedies allowed by law may be used, including civil action or prosecution as misdemeanor or infraction. District may pursue civil actions in the California courts to seek recovery of unpaid administrative citations. District may choose to delay court action until such time as a sufficiently large number of violations, or cumulative size of violations exist such that court action is a reasonable use of District staff and resources.
- c. Enforcement pursuant to this ordinance may be undertaken by the District Enforcement Official, which may be the District General Manager or designee.

d. Process for Enforcement

- 1. District Enforcement Officials and/or their Designee will monitor compliance with the ordinance randomly and through Compliance Reviews, Route Reviews, investigation of complaints, and an Inspection program. Section 9.09 establishes District's right to conduct Inspections and investigations.
- 2. District may issue an official notification to notify regulated entities of its obligations under the ordinance.
- 3. District shall issue a Notice of Violation requiring compliance within 60 days of issuance of the notice.
- 4. Absent compliance by the respondent within the deadline set forth in the Notice of Violation, District shall commence an action to impose penalties, via an administrative citation and fine. Notices shall be sent to "owner" at the official address of the owner maintained by the tax collector for the District or if no such address is available, to the owner at the address of the dwelling or Commercial property or to the party responsible for paying for the collection services, depending upon available information
- e. Penalty Amounts for Types of Violations

The penalty levels are as follows:

- 1. For a first violation, the amount of the base penalty shall be \$50 to \$100 per violation.
- 2. For a second violation, the amount of the base penalty shall be \$100 to \$200 per violation.
- 3. For a third or subsequent violation, the amount of the base penalty shall be \$250 to \$500 per violation.

f. Factors Considered in Determining Penalty Amount

The following factors shall be used to determine the amount of the penalty for each violation within the appropriate penalty amount range:

- 1. The nature, circumstances, and severity of the violation(s).
- 2. The violator's ability to pay.
- 3. The willfulness of the violator's misconduct.
- 4. Whether the violator took measures to avoid or mitigate violations of this chapter.
- 5. Evidence of any economic benefit resulting from the violation(s).
- 6. The deterrent effect of the penalty on the violator.
- 7. Whether the violation(s) were due to conditions outside the control of the violator.

g. Compliance Deadline Extension Considerations

The District may extend the compliance deadlines set forth in a Notice of Violation issued in accordance with Section 9.10 if it finds that there are extenuating circumstances beyond the control of the respondent that make compliance within the deadlines impracticable, including the following:

- Acts of God such as earthquakes, wildfires, flooding, and other emergencies or natural disasters;
- 2. Delays in obtaining discretionary permits or other government agency approvals; or,
- 3. Deficiencies in Organic Waste recycling infrastructure or Edible Food Recovery capacity and the District is under a corrective action plan with CalRecycle pursuant to 14 CCR Section 18996.2 due to those deficiencies.

h. Appeals Process

Persons receiving an administrative citation containing a penalty for an uncorrected violation may request a hearing to appeal the citation. A hearing will be held only if it is requested within the time prescribed and consistent with District's procedures in the District's codes for appeals of administrative citations. Evidence may be presented at the hearing. The District will appoint a hearing officer who shall conduct the hearing and issue a final written order.

i. Education Period for Non-Compliance

Beginning January 1, 2023 and through December 31, 2023, Jurisdiction will conduct Inspections, Route Reviews or waste evaluations, and Compliance Reviews, depending upon the type of regulated entity, to determine compliance, and if District determines that Organic Waste Generator, Self-Hauler, hauler, Tier One Commercial Edible Food Generator, Food Recovery Organization, Food Recovery Service, or other entity is not in compliance, it shall provide educational materials to the entity describing its obligations under this ordinance and a notice that compliance is required by January 1, 2023, and that violations may be subject to administrative civil penalties starting on January 1, 2024.

j. Civil Penalties for Non-Compliance

Beginning January 1, 2024, if the District determines that an Organic Waste Generator, Self-Hauler, hauler, Tier One or Tier Two Commercial Edible Food Generator, Food Recovery Organization, Food Recovery Service, or other entity is not in compliance with this ordinance, it shall document the noncompliance or violation, issue a Notice of Violation, and take Enforcement Action pursuant to Section 9.10, as needed.

MEMORANDUM

Date: September 6, 2022

To: Finance Committee

From: Tom Hennig, General Manager

Subject: Financial Consulting Services Agreement with The Pun Group

Recommended Action

This report is for the Finance Committee information only and requires no action by the Board of Directors.

Financial Consulting Services

This District has had significant turnover in its Finance Department which has created delays in accomplishing the accounting reconciliation processes and financial reporting. The District is behind on its financial reporting for FY 2021, 2022, and 2023. Based on direction from the Board of Directors, the General Manager sought proposals from accounting and consulting firms to provide financial accounting and consulting services to support the financial operations of the District and to augment internal staff to complete four immediate primary objectives. These include the completion of external audits for fiscal years 2020/21 and 2021/22, assistance with the monthly close for fiscal year 2021/22, budget to actual reporting for fiscal year 2022, and budget to actual reporting for fiscal year 2022/23 for the months of July and August. The District has received two proposals from certified public accounting firms in Northern California with deep experience in governmental accounting and auditing and has selected the Pun Group LLP for this scope of work. This work began on Tuesday, August 30.

Background

The District has received a significant number of findings identified through consultation with third party accounting firms, prior audits, and internal evaluation and assessment. This coupled with significant staff turnover in the Finance Department and a general lack of government accounting staff resources in the market due to the great resignation, has left a void in the finance department that has been very difficult to fill. The Department currently has two vacant positions, an accounting manager, and an accountant. There are approximately four temporary personnel working to keep the day-to-day operations functioning.

This turnover is further exacerbated by the District's accounting system, Great Plains. Great Plains, though a robust accounting system, was not implemented utilizing all the modules available to the District including pooled cash accounting, bank reconciliation module, fixed asset module and others. In addition, three subsidiary systems are used for areas such as utility billing, procurement, and payroll. To integrate this activity, a significant portion of the District's accounting activities are manual and reported via allocations and journal entries. This creates an environment that is highly complicated and prone to error absent a thorough knowledge transfer, reconciliation, and review process with sufficient segregation of duties. Essentially, the same person that records the entries, should not also authorize the entries and reconcile the bank accounts.

In response, the District sent out proposals in May 2022 and through that proposal process engaged the services of Eide Bailly, a top tier accounting firm, to complete the requisite services as outlined in the RFQ. Eide Bailly spent approximately one week at the District offices, and after evaluating the District's accounting records, recognized that they did not have sufficient resources and capabilities to complete the work timely but outlined a suggested plan of work for a successor and areas requiring immediate attention.

Current Situation

District staff sent out subsequent solicitation and received and evaluated two proposals from two firms with a vast array of local government experience, including Special Districts, in auditing, accounting and audit readiness services.

After review of the two proposals, the General Manager selected the Pun Group to complete the following mission critical scope of work under initial task orders during the first ninety (90) days with working progressing monthly thereafter:

- 1. Complete and/or review the required schedules for the Fiscal Year 2021 external auditors to validate the District's audit readiness.
- 2. Provide experienced staff in governmental accounting and auditing, that can work independently to review the work, and where necessary, reconcile financial statement amounts for the District
- 3. Prepare the budget versus actual reports for Fiscal Year 2023 to include July and August months.
- 4. Prepare the budget versus actual reports for Fiscal 2022 once the transactions have been entered and reconciled. Internal District staff resources may be utilized for these reconciliations. (Timing will depend on the closing of months for 2022)
- 5. Aid in the preparation of the day-to-day journal entry transactions that are not integrated to Great Plains (general ledger) which includes accrued payroll/payroll reconciliations and Utility Billing Accounts Receivable/Revenue, Developer Deposit Billing Accounts Receivable/Revenue, and Accounts Payable/Expenditures reconciliations for Fiscal Year 2022 and Fiscal Year 2023. (Timing will depend on the closing of months for 2022)
- 6. Assist with the Fund Balance roll forward and reconciliation for Fiscal Year 2021 and 2022.

The above areas represent the more significant areas discussed in our meetings with the third party accounting firms and staff. As work progresses, it is possible more gaps may be found during the closing process. We will report these to the Finance Committee as they are identified.

Other objectives that will benefit the District include the following:

- To offer beneficial observations and recommendations about policies and procedures for budget, accounting, and operating controls
- To identify opportunities to make District operations more efficient and reduce costs
- To perform the work efficiently, and as independently as possible, so disruption to office operations is kept to a minimum
- To provide continuing advisory services to implement recommendations The Engagement Team will perform the engagement abiding by the Firm's quality-control procedures, which emphasizes thoughtful and careful planning, open communication, and proper assignment of responsibilities.

Engagement Approach

The work be issued under a Master Services Agreement and issued in separate Task Orders due to the extensive scope and breadth of the requests. Tasks not included in the initial Task Orders No. 1-4 will be evaluate for additional task orders as work progresses at the satisfaction of the District and once the external audit for fiscal year June 30, 2021, is completed.

Project Timeline

	Aug		Sep		Oct		Nov		Dec	
	Mid	End								
Task Order No. 1 - FY 21 Accounting Services & Audit Readiness		•	•	•						
Task Order No. 2 - FY 23 Budget and Actual Reports - July and August		•	•	•						
Task Order No. 3 - FY 22 Accounting Services & Audit Readiness				•	•	•	•	•	•	
Task Order No. 3 - FY 22 Budget and Actual Reports - YTD									•	•

FY 2020-21 Audit

District staff finalized the majority of the general ledger accounts and provided information to the auditors since the last meeting. We have begun engaging in conversation with the auditors and additional information and reconciliations were requested. Once the Pun Group LLP completes their review of the accounting schedule submitted to the auditor, the auditor will schedule fieldwork dates. We anticipate fieldwork to be fit in sometime in October due to the current government audit busy season. Updates will be provided at the next Finance Committee meeting in October 2022.

Deliverables

Upon completion of the engagement, the following will be provided to the Error! Reference source not found.:

- FY 21 Accounting Services and Audit Readiness Electronic copies of our working papers and supporting documentation will be provided to the District via Suralink.
- FY 22 Accounting Services and Audit Readiness Electronic copies of our working papers and supporting documentation will be provided to the District via Suralink.
- FY 23 Budget vs Actual Electronic copies of our templates for the months of June and July All Funds.
- FY 22 Budget vs Actual For the year ending June 30, 2022 All Funds.
- Copies of templates, instruction, calendars used during the engagement.
- Ongoing support to monitor the budget vs. actual reporting for two additional quarters.

Financial Impact

Salary savings from the two vacant positions will be used to offset the cost of the contract. Work will be billed as work progresses on a monthly basis at discounted standard rates based on time incurred for the prior month at the various levels of responsibility, plus actual out-of-pocket expenses for travel costs. The Firm will work to minimize travel costs by working remote when practical or by utilizing Northern California resources. However, travel will be at the Firm's discretion based on the work to be performed, the skill level of staff required, and whether the District records permit offsite review and do not unnecessarily burden District staff to scan records. The Firm utilizes a secure portal Suralink to share District records when requested.

Status reports of work progress and costs incurred will be brought back to the Finance Committee for consideration and evaluation monthly.